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From housing the
state’s largest
evacuation centre
during the devastating
January floods to
starting construction on
the historic $2.9 billion
RNA Showgrounds
Regeneration Project,
2011 will be recorded as one of the RNA’s
proudest years.
It was a watershed year for our organisation,
a time when a vision set by the RNA Council in
2003 to secure our long-term financial viability
became a reality, along with coming together
and helping out our fellow Queenslanders
in a time of great sadness and tragedy.
As a centre point for the community for the
past 137 years, the RNA was honoured and
humbled to play a small role in the State
Government’s Emergency Disaster Planning.
In the midst of the Queensland flood crisis,
the RNA Showgrounds provided 1,600 evacuees
with accommodation, dining and administration
facilities for eight days. We also provided
24 hour support and assistance to the Red
Cross, who managed the evacuation centre,
and housed a special Recovery Centre to
help evacuees receive vital information and
assistance to get their lives back on track.
The community spirit and mateship which
followed this destructive weather event
resonated at our Royal Queensland Show
(Ekka) some six months later. The RNA
encouraged the community to have a break,
come together and celebrate their great state,
after enduring such hardship and loss—a
message actively embraced by the Brisbane
media. City and country truly united this year,
sharing a common emotion and understanding
of what one another were going through.
Throughout the 10 days of Show a great
atmosphere and prevailing spirit could be felt
among the 400,000 plus visitors who attended.
April signalled the start of construction on
stage one of our world-class RNA Showgrounds
Regeneration Project—an historic milestone
not just for the RNA, but for Queensland as a
whole. This ‘legacy setting project’ represents
the largest Brownfield development in Australia
and the most significant urban renewal in
Brisbane since South Bank. It has been achieved
without Federal or State Government funding,
which other similar projects have enjoyed.

A $65 million loan through Queensland
Treasury has funded the current works
underway—the transformation of the Industrial
Pavilion into the Royal International Convention
Centre—Brisbane Australia due to open in
early 2013.
For 137 years, the RNA has worked to promote
and encourage the development of the state's
agricultural, pastoral, horticultural, industrial,
manufacturing and cultural resources. While
at the same time providing an opportunity for
country and city residents to come together
and celebrate the Queensland lifestyle.
This underpins the regeneration of the RNA
Showgrounds. The longevity of the RNA
and the Ekka is being secured while bringing
change for the better. For the next 15 years,
change will occur, including the relocation
of some Ekka competitions. Just as the
RNA embraces technology, it also welcomes
modernisation—strengthening the organisation
for years to come.
While upgrading facilities, the regeneration
project will transform our 22 hectares into
a vibrant community and cultural hub where
people can come to live, work and play.
It will become a destination synonymous
with events, fashion, design, lifestyle and
culture, hosting events and shows all year
round. Our convention centre will bring new
events and venue hire opportunities to the
RNA, further strengthening our organisation.
I would like to thank everyone who has
supported and contributed to the RNA’s
success this year including all RNA Councillors,
staff and valued members, plus our Ekka
and Royal Queensland Food and Wine Show
judges, stewards and competitors. 2012 will
be an exciting one for the RNA with the
scheduled completion of the new convention
centre and the continued expansion of the
Royal Queensland Food and Wine Show
and Ekka competitions.
Less than six months ago I was elected
president of the RNA, after serving on the
council for nine years—the last two as Senior
Vice-President. I am very proud to be a part
of this organisation and I look forward to
another year of strong growth and success.

David Thomas
RNA President
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2011 HIGHLIGHTS

32,134
75%

people downloaded the ﬁrst
ever Ekka iPhone app,
which at its peak was ranked
the third most popular free
entertainment app in
Australia

For the second
consecutive year
the Ekka generated
more than

$1.2 million

INCREASE
in RNA jobs, from
750 in 2010 to
1,311 in 2011

in sponsorship

MORE THAN

50%
INCREASE
in Ekka website visits
from 455,000 visits
in 2010 to 687,000
visits in 2011

INCREASE

34%

$20.5 million
in free publicity with double the
amount of stories in the state,
national and international
media from 6,000 in 2010
to 12,000 in 2011

For the second
consecutive year
the Ekka attracted
more than

INCREASE
in venue hire business
revenue in 2011; since 2009
this has increased by 91%
from $3.6 million to
$8 million

people attended music
festivals this year at the
RNA Showgrounds

in Ekka Facebook fans
from 5,974 in 2010
to 19,507 in 2011

THE EKKA
GENERATED

in food and beverage
revenue from $2.8 million
in 2010 to $4.6 million
in 2011

105,000

INCREASE

people attended
events at the RNA
Showgrounds outside
of the Ekka

64%

MORE THAN

226%

500,000

400,000
through the gates

Ekka
gate revenue
increased by almost

4%

on last year’s record
breaking gate takings
from $5.9 million
to $6.2 million—
the highest ever

27%
INCREASE
in online Ekka ticket
sales with 52,000
attending through
online sales

RNA turnover
for 2011 exceeded
2010’s

highest ever
turnover
by 11 per cent to
$23.5 million
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WHO WE ARE

The RNA
The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland (RNA)
is a member based organisation governed by 21 RNA Councillors. An executive team
of seven, including the RNA President, is responsible for overseeing the operations
of the association which owns and operates the RNA Showgrounds, situated
1.6 kilometres from Brisbane’s central business district.
The organisation’s charter is to promote and encourage the development of the
state’s agricultural, industrial, manufacturing and cultural resources. It aims to provide
a vibrant destination with leading educational and event facilities and activities that
capture the hearts and minds of all Queenslanders, from the country to the city.

A TRIP BACK IN TIME
Ever wondered what the RNA Annual
Report contained 100 years ago?
Above is the cover of the 1911 Annual
Report, presented by RNA President
the Honourable Sir Arthur Morgan, Kt.
That year the RNA held a successful week
long Ekka with 149,400 people attending—
an increase of 11,000 on the previous
year. From their Queen Street offices,
£3,485 14s. 9d. was paid in Show prize
money and trophies across horses, cattle,
wine, womens' industries and carriage
competitions. Revenue was up £811 in 1911
to £11,555 11s. 11d. including £69 10s. 3d.
received for rent of the paddock and house
on the Gregory Terrace property. The RNA
website contains many of the past annual
reports, from 1901 to 2010.

The RNA runs the Royal Queensland Show (Ekka), Queensland’s largest event,
on behalf of the community for 10 days each year in August. Staged at its original
birthplace, the RNA Showgrounds, the Ekka showcases its unique tradition and
heritage by bringing the city and country together for a once a year get-together.
More than 400,000 people gather to see thousands of exhibits, 10,000 animals,
world-class entertainment and taste award-winning food and wine. Along with this,
the organisation runs the Royal Queensland Food and Wine Show—a series of seven
individual competitions unearthing the best produce in Australia plus a sausage
competition unearthing the state’s best. Outside of the annual Ekka, the RNA
is a venue hire business which hosts about 150 events each year, including music
festivals, lifestyle exhibitions and sporting matches.
The RNA enjoys an engaging membership of almost 5,000 people throughout
metropolitan and regional Australia. Being an RNA member is a tradition for
many families with children following in the footsteps of generations before them.
RNA junior, adult, corporate and life members enjoy a range of benefits including
free admission to the Ekka for the member and a guest; access to the members’
grandstand and bar and free use of lockers during the Show. Members also enjoy
reduced entry fees for most Royal Queensland Show competitions, discounted RNA
Showgrounds venue hire, free parking at RNA Showgrounds events (outside of Ekka)
and the quarterly Showbiz magazine.

How it started
The RNA has a rich history stemming back to 1875 when a group of colonists joined
together to encourage the development of Queensland’s primary industries. Leading
members of colonial society formed the first RNA Council, under the presidency of
Governor Sir William Cairns, with most of the 35 members pastoralists and merchants.
The RNA Council immediately committed themselves to organising the very first
exhibition for Brisbane—from calling for tenders for the initial building to meeting with
the Premier of Queensland to establish a public holiday on opening day. The result was
the Intercolonial Exhibition of 1876—the largest event to be held in the state up to that
point. The RNA, along with the exhibition, continued to expand and grow in popularity
and in 1921, the association was granted the prefix ‘Royal’ under warrant from
His Majesty King George V. Since then, the shortened name ‘Ekka’ has replaced
‘Exhibition’ in the Queensland vernacular.
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The 1955 Catalogue of Entries for Cattle,
Sheep, Wool, Pigs and Goats.

The early Shows
On August 22, 1876, a crowd of more
than 15,000 people made their way by
horse, foot or carriage to experience
the very first Ekka, at what is now
known as the RNA Showgrounds.
Some of today’s traditions stem back
to this first exhibition. Competitions
were a cornerstone of the Ekka right
from the beginning with 1,700 entries
across 600 classes competing for
trophies, cash prizes and medals.
Visitors were treated to more than
1,000 exhibits and charged an entry
fee of a half-crown, or one shilling
if they waited until after the official
opening. The first Show depended
heavily on the voluntary efforts of
RNA Council members, judges and
stewards as the RNA did not yet have
its own staff, apart from employing
nightwatchmen. Celebrating
the colony’s achievements, the
Intercolonial Exhibition of 1876 was
praised as the most significant event
in Queensland since its separation
from New South Wales.
Since 1876 the Ekka has continued to
grow in popularity and size, remaining
one of the most anticipated yearly
events. It has been held annually
at the RNA Showgrounds since its
inception except for two instances—
in 1919 at the height of the Spanish
influenza epidemic and in 1942 during
World War II when the grounds were
used as a staging depot for troops.*

* Historical information and statistics sourced from
‘Showtime—A History of the Brisbane Exhibition’ by
Joanne Scott and Ross Laurie, 2008; and RNA Archives.
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5:52PM. 17 August 2011 Ekka.
Sideshow Alley lights up the night sky.
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RNA CORPORATE

Year in review
Strong growth
The turnover for the RNA increased by 11 per cent to $23.5 million in the past
12 months, exceeding 2010's highest ever turnover of $21 million. Ekka revenue
increased by almost four per cent on last year’s record breaking gate takings
from $5.9 million to $6.2 million—the highest ever. The organisation also recorded
a 34 per cent increase in venue hire business revenue this year; since 2009 this
has increased by 91 per cent from $3.6 million to $8 million.
From vision to reality
2011 has been an historic year for the RNA with construction starting on the
$2.9 billion 15 year RNA Showgrounds Regeneration Project in April. This project
is the most significant undertaking the organisation has embarked on during its
137 year history. It signals a seven year planning process to achieve the longterm financial viability of the RNA and guarantees the Royal Queensland Show
remains at the RNA Showgrounds.
Lending a hand
Top: The RNA was honoured to have Murphy’s
Creek State School Principal Jo Sinclair-Jones
and students Joshua Ragnoni, Zac Keogh,
Jesse Sheehan and Ava Sinclair (pictured with
previous RNA President Allan Warby) officially
launch Ekka 2011.
Bottom: RNA Chief Executive Jonathan Tunny
opened the Ekka gates a day early for four year
old Liam Little, who was born with a very rare
auto-immune condition known as IPEX Syndrome.

The devastation caused by the January floods saw thousands of Queenslanders
lend a hand to help those impacted by one of the state’s worst natural disasters.
The civic pride, resilience and mateship shown across large parts of the state
played a vital role in helping communities start the recovery process. The RNA
was humbled to be able play a small part in this by housing Queensland’s largest
evacuation centre at the RNA Showgrounds helping 1,600 people; plus ensuring
the Red Cross and other charity organisations were able to store goods and
provide services in the aftermath.
Royal Queensland Show
The 2011 Royal Queensland Show (Ekka) was an outstanding success and closely
mirrored some of the record breaking results from Ekka 2010. Attendance passed
400,000 for the second year in a row, turnover increased to almost $13.6 million,
gate receipts increased by almost four per cent to $6.2 million and bar sales
rose by almost five per cent to just under $600,000. A major public relations
media campaign which generated $20.5 million in free publicity, plus interactive
marketing and social media initiatives, promoted the Show to state, national
and international audiences. A strategic focus on the Ekka’s traditions, value,
food and fun also helped the RNA stage a bumper Show.
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Real life experience that works

Artist impression of the transformed Industrial Pavilion
into the $59 million Royal International Convention Centre.
The centre is due to open in March 2013.

More than 160 students applied for the chance to participate in the expanded
RNA/Queensland University of Technology (QUT) Student Internship Program.
The program is designed to give students real life work experience while providing
an insight into the RNA’s business and people. Twelve internships were available
for students to work at the RNA in the lead-up to, and during, the 2011 Royal
Queensland Show. This year, the program was extended to students with studies
and career interests relevant to all RNA departments—not just Public Relations/
Communications. This included Human Resources; Construction Management,
Engineering; Building Management, Surveying; Entertainment; Marketing and
Social Media; Event Management; Film Production; Information Management;
and Leasing Management.
New jobs created

2011 REGENERATION WORKS
đƳ Transformation of the Industrial Pavilion
into a world-class convention and
exhibition centre began in April 2011
đƳ $7 million in enabling infrastructure
works to improve stormwater and
sewer works began

2012 PLANNED WORKS*
đƳ Completion of convention and
exhibition centre
đƳ Completion of stage one
infrastructure works
đƳ Construction on the first
residential precinct
đƳ Planned construction on the
first commercial building
đƳ Construction to commence
on Ekka Plaza
đƳ Planned release of the next
residential stage

In 2011, the RNA created 561 extra jobs, a 75 per cent increase from 2010.
More than 1,300 positions were offered across music festivals, Ekka and RNA
corporate roles. This year eight corporate permanent positions were created
including a General Manager of Operations, General Manager of Sales and
Marketing, Competitions Manager, exhibition and event planning managers,
floor managers and office assistants.

A legacy in the making
Construction on the world-class $2.9 billion 15 year RNA Showgrounds
Regeneration Project—the largest Brownfield development of its kind in
Australia—began in April 2011.
The RNA Showgrounds Regeneration Project involves:
đƳ 340,000m2 of new residential, commercial and retail development located on
5.5 hectares around the extremities of the RNA site, together with 76,000m2
within the RNA site
đƳ New large animal pavilions
đƳ Upgrading the pavilions, ovals and stands
đƳ Linking neighbouring precincts and suburbs with cycle and walking paths
đƳ Planning for a hotel to accommodate Brisbane’s business and tourist visitors
đƳ An urban community consisting of commercial, retail and residential buildings
Expected to deliver more than 2,000 jobs and $300 million a year in economic
benefits to Queensland over the life of the project. The RNA Showgrounds
Regeneration represents an historic planning milestone for Brisbane and is a
once in a lifetime project.
Lend Lease is the master developer providing funding partners, development
management, project management, design management and construction.

* Future dates are indicative only.
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“

Construction on transforming
the iconic Industrial Pavilion

REGENERATION TIMELINE

into the $59 million

APRIL 2011

Royal International Convention Centre
began in April 2011."
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The projected look of the RNA Showgrounds after
completion of the regeneration project in 15 years.
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Industrial Pavilion and Ekka Plaza
Construction on the iconic Industrial Pavilion began in April 2011, transforming
it into the $59 million Royal International Convention Centre. Queensland Premier
Anna Bligh launched the project on March 28 and unveiled the design which
importantly retains the key heritage facades built in 1937.
The Royal International Convention Centre will total 22,000m2, an increase of
10,000m2, and house a variety of exhibitions and events on a year-round basis.
It will include large exhibition halls, public car park, large commercial kitchen,
meeting and board rooms and the RNA’s new administration office. It will also
front a revitalised area (Ekka Plaza) that provides additional exhibition space
for indoor/outdoor events.

Top: The ground floor of the convention centre
is currently under construction and will be ready
for use at Ekka 2012.
Bottom: Artist impression of 30,000m2
of commercial development.

The project is on target and works in 2011 involved propping and stabilising
the heritage facades along Gregory Terrace and Ekka Plaza prior to removing
the roof. Following Ekka 2011, work focused on the excavation and installation
of the lower level car park. Other stage one works completed include the
removal of the Channel 9 Sports Bar, which makes way for the future open
public area within Ekka Plaza.

Showground Hill launched
In September Lend Lease launched the planned residential, commercial and retail
precincts of the RNA Showgrounds Regeneration Project—Showground Hill.
Taking shape on the perimeter of the RNA Showgrounds site, the first stage
of construction will include The Green, comprising of 300 residential apartments.
On November 12, 2011, Lend Lease officially opened its sales suite which
included a two bedroom display apartment, and contracts were signed that day.
Construction will start in early 2012 on the mid-rise one and two bedroom
apartments, adjacent to the new Main Street for Showground Hill, and 30,000m2
of office space.
Once completed the RNA Showgrounds is expected to be home to more than
3,000 residents, 15,000 workers and 340,000m2 of new residential, commercial
and retail precincts.

12
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$2.9
billion
value of the
project

340,000m2

Infrastructure
Upgrades are currently underway to existing RNA Showgrounds services to
improve the site’s stormwater and sewer systems. A number of buildings have
been removed to enable site wide infrastructure works including the Agricultural
Hall, Douglas Wadley Dog Pavilion, Frank Nicklin Building and Frank Robertson
Building.

Regeneration and the Ekka
The regeneration not only safeguards the legacy of the 22 hectare site, but also
ensures the Ekka’s history, traditions and unique atmosphere are preserved by
upgrading and replacing venues to provide state-of-the-art facilities.

size of new residential,
commercial and retail
development

2,000
JOBS
expected to be
created over the life
of the 15 year
project

Stage one construction works resulted in some locational changes for attractions,
such as showbags, at Ekka 2011. Showbags remained a major part of the Ekka,
housed in a purpose-built facility offering the same range as previously, and
located in the Sideshow Alley entertainment precinct.
The success of Ekka 2011 showed how the event can operate seamlessly during
the regeneration project. Construction is timed to minimise disruption to the
Show over the life of the project. For Ekka 2012, the ground floor of the newly
transformed Industrial Pavilion will be back in use.

$7 million
in initial
infrastructure
works

$300
million
A YEAR
expected economic beneﬁt
to Queensland over the
life of the project

30,000m2
of office space
being built

300
amount of
residential
apartments in
The Green
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IN MEMORIAM

Peter Kenny

Harold Thompson

The RNA was deeply saddened by the
passing of two long serving Councillors this
year—Peter Kenny and Harold Thompson.

On Saturday November 26, 2011,
RNA Councillor Harold Thompson passed
away. Well known for his support of the
dairy industry in Queensland, Harold
made a significant contribution to the
Dairy Section of the Ekka. Appointed to
the RNA Council in 2000, Harold was a
member of the RNA Entries; Veterinary;
Dairy Cattle, Goat, Pig and Deer; and Joint
Stock Committees until his retirement in
September this year.

Peter Kenny—a man of great advocacy,
passion and vision for rural Queensland—
passed away on Saturday October 8, 2011.
Peter was appointed to the RNA Council
in December 2008 and was a member
of the Dairy Committee and a strong
supporter of primary industries in
Queensland. He was a keen advocate
for adopting a big picture approach to
agripolitics and a great supporter and
friend to many at the RNA. Peter brought
great energy and enthusiasm to the
organisation particularly for education
and bridging the city/country divide
through the Royal Queensland Show
(Ekka). He was a man of vision and
believed in cementing a strong future for
the RNA and the Ekka through the RNA
Showgrounds Regeneration Project.
A special medal in honour of Peter was
announced on November 30 by Queensland
Minister for Agriculture, Food and Regional
Economies Tim Mulherin. The medal is to
recognise his efforts to champion the bush
and his dedication to improving biosecurity.
The inaugural Peter Kenny Medal for
Outstanding Contribution to Biosecurity
in Queensland was established to reward
individuals or organisations that share
his passion and demonstrate excellence
in biosecurity management.

Harold dedicated almost 60 years of his
life to the RNA and became the third
generation in the Thompson family to
receive life membership. Having been an
exhibitor before joining the Council, Harold
was highly regarded by Ekka competitors
due to his obvious love and knowledge
of the industry. He also judged at many
shows, outside of the Ekka, and was wellrespected in the judging world.
Harold had a long history in industry
and was also made a life member of the
Queensland Branch of the Illawarra Cattle
Society of Australia in 2010. He was a
champion of the industry and the families
and people who worked within it.
The RNA was very fortunate to have
men of such calibre on the council and
will be forever grateful for their service.
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THROUGH THE YEARS

THE NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL
AND INDUSTRIAL ASSOCIATION
OF QUEENSLAND
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1878

THE CENTRE OF SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

TOOWOOMBA’S AUSTRAL HALL
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FIRST FIREWORKS
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MAIN PAVILION REPLACED
đƳ
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MAIN PAVILION DESTROYED
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THE FIRST RAILWAY STATION
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THE FIRST EXHIBITION
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INTRODUCTION OF QUEENSLAND’S
NEWEST TECHNOLOGIES

1923

ERNEST BAYNES STAND BUILT

đƳ $!ƳƳ$+3#.+1* /Ƴ!)!Ƴ0$!Ƴ!*0.!Ƴ+"Ƴ0$!Ƴ
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THROUGH THE YEARS

NATIONAL SPEEDWAY

2000
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1928
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2003
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2005

RNA SHOWGROUNDS MASTER PLAN
LAUNCHED

2007

SOUNDWAVE MUSIC FESTIVAL

đƳ %./0Ƴ%*0!.*0%+*(Ƴ.1#5Ƴ(!#1!Ƴ#)!Ƴ$!( Ƴ+*Ƴ
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1930’s GREAT DEPRESSION
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1937

INDUSTRIAL PAVILION OPENED

1942

WORLD WAR II

2009

2010

đƳ Ƴ+,!.0!/Ƴ+*!Ƴ+"Ƴ0$!Ƴ)+/0Ƴ/1!//"1(Ƴ''Ě/Ƴ
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1964

ANIMAL NURSERY AT THE EKKA FIRST
INTRODUCED

1966

HUMAN CANNONBALL APPEARS
AT THE EKKA FOR THE FIRST TIME*

1971

INTERNATIONAL SPRINGBOK TOUR
đƳ *0!.*0%+*(Ƴ,.%*#+'Ƴ+1.Ƴ3$!.!ƳƳ03+Ƴ)!0.!Ƴ$%*Ƴ
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1989

LIVID MUSIC FESTIVAL
đƳ $!Ƴ.!*+3*! Ƴ %2% Ƴ 1/%Ƴ!/0%2(Ƴ3/Ƴ$!( Ƴ0Ƴ
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1996

COMMERCE AND EXHIBITION
BUILDINGS CONSTRUCTED

MASTER PLAN APPROVAL
đƳ Ƴ$+3#.+1* /Ƴ /0!.Ƴ(*Ƴ,,.+2! Ƴ5Ƴ0$!Ƴ
.*Ƴ * Ƴ!2!(+,)!*0Ƴ10$+.%05Ƴ,2%*#Ƴ35Ƴ
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1950’s EKKA FOOD TRADITIONS

QUEEN ELIZABETH II AND PRINCE
PHILLIP VISIT THE EKKA

REDEVELOPMENT PARTNER
đƳ Ƴ/!(!0/Ƴ !* Ƴ !/!Ƴ/Ƴ%0/Ƴ !2!(+,)!*0Ƴ,.0*!.Ƴ
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1954

REDEVELOPMENT VISION BEGINS
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SIR DONALD BRADMAN TEST DEBUT
đƳ

SIDESHOW ALLEY AND WOODCHOP

đƳ *!Ƴ)%((%+*Ƴ,!+,(!Ƴ00!* Ƴ!2!*0/Ƴ0Ƴ0$!ƳƳ
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2011

CONSTRUCTION BEGINS
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* Information sourced from ‘Showtime—A History
of the Brisbane Exhibition’ by Joanne Scott and
Ross Laurie, 2008.
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RNA SHOWGROUNDS

ATTENDANCE AT MUSIC FESTIVALS
1. Soundwave
45,000

2. Stereosonic
25,000

3. Supafest
20,000

Overview
The RNA Showgrounds is Brisbane’s largest indoor/outdoor events venue
offering facilities across 22 hectares. In 2011, 146 events were held ranging from
the Ekka, to weddings, trade shows and exhibitions, sporting events and major
music festivals. There was only one weekend this year, with the exception of
Easter and Christmas, that an event was not held at the RNA Showgrounds.
This represents a 34 per cent increase in venue hire revenue. Since 2009 this
has increased by 91 per cent from $3.6 million to $8 million.

4. Creamﬁelds
8,600

5. St Jerome’s Laneway Festival
7,100

LARGEST ATTENDED EVENTS
1. Caravan & Camping Show

The RNA’s next generation
The growing popularity of the RNA Showgrounds as an events destination
resulted in more than 550 jobs being created this year, increasing from 750 in
2010 to 1,311 in 2011, most of which were for casual positions at large music
festivals. An extra 440 positions were created for the Soundwave and Supafest
music events, plus 100 for St Jerome’s Laneway Festival for the first time.
More than 70 extra casual bar positions were created for Ekka 2011.

75,000

2. The Sunday Mail March Home Show
60,000

3. Soundwave
45,000

4. Bridge to Brisbane
42,500

5. National 4x4 Outdoor Expo and
Brisbane Tinnie & Tackle Show
35,000

6. Oktoberfest
28,000

7. Stereosonic
25,000

8. Supanova
23,500

9. The Courier-Mail and Sunday Mail
Spring Home Show
21,000

10. Supafest
20,000

11. Tertiary Studies Expo (TSXPO)
20,000
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Event turnaround
To cater for so many events each year, teams of contractors, cleaners and
builders work to ensure event turnaround occurs quickly and efficiently.
Regular inspections, moisture testing, annual soil analysis, spring renovation
and seasonal fertilising programs on the Main Arena turf support its resilience
to hold car parking one day to concerts, baseball games and the Ekka the next.
In a remarkable feat, the RNA Showgrounds was transformed in just 24 hours
from the Soundwave rock concert to the venue for The Sunday Mail March Home
Show. Similarly the Brisbane Bandits baseball team took to the Main Arena just
four days after it hosted 25,000 people for the Stereosonic music festival.

MORE THAN
MORE THAN

1,100

11,000

tables or 2.75km worth
are set up, positioned
and then packed up
each year

chairs are set up,
positioned and then
packed up each year
for events

1km

of old timber was removed
and replaced throughout
Machinery Hill,
John MacDonald Stand
bench and concourse
seating areas

BIGGEST ARTISTS IN 2011
Iron Maiden
Soundwave

Slash
Soundwave

Queens of the Stone Age
Soundwave

Snoop Dogg

Going green
The RNA is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and this year the use
of three waste streams (general, recycling and paper/cardboard) was extended
to all events on grounds. Through waste separation and Bio Waste Stations for
general waste disposal, the RNA saved 1,235 tonnes of CO 2 due to diversion
away from landfill—equivalent to 1,453 employees on a flight from Sydney
to Hong Kong. This is a 21 per cent improvement on 2010.

Supafest

Nelly
Supafest

Armin van Buuren
Stereosonic

LMFAO
Stereosonic

Deadmau5
Creamfields

Martin Solveig
Creamfields

Approximately 4,100m3 of recyclable sawdust and sand, equivalent to two
Olympic swimming pools, was used for animal bedding at this year’s Ekka.
The RNA also decreased its environmental impact by ensuring the animal
bedding was re-used for landscape soil supplies and sugarcane field restoration.

Festivals attract world−class artists
In 2011 alone, more than 105,000 people attended music festivals at the
RNA Showgrounds. Playing host to five concerts this year, Soundwave attracted
the largest crowd with 45,000 people attending. The events featured some of
the world’s best known performers including heavy metal legends Iron Maiden
and Slash and hip-hop star Snoop Dogg. This year also brought Creamfields
dance festival to the RNA Showgrounds for the first time, and the return of the
indie St Jerome's Laneway Festival, hip-hop Supafest and electronic Stereosonic.
The 2012 line-up is gearing up to be just as big with artist Marilyn Manson,
Grammy Award winners Slipknot, reformed group Limp Bizkit and System
of a Down appearing at Soundwave in February 2012.
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EKKA / ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW

Overview
For the second year in a row, more than 400,000 people attended the
Royal Queensland Show (Ekka) to celebrate their state—from city to country.
After such a devastating start to the year for many people, Ekka 2011 was a
time to showcase the spirit, resilience and community support of Queensland.
The impact of the January floods caused much heartache and devastation but
also stirred communities to rally behind one another in an outpouring of civic
pride and true mateship.
ENERGEX Chairman John Dempsey and Promotions
and Creative Services Manager Terry Nodwell,
with former RNA President Allan Warby, present
Murphy’s Creek State School Principal Jo SinclairJones with a $1,000 cheque from ENERGEX to
assist in rebuilding after the January 2011 floods.

QUEENSLAND'S LARGEST
MARKETPLACE
316 companies
463 allocated spaces

The RNA encouraged the community to come together at the Ekka and celebrate
all things Queensland. This proved to be a great rallying call and was actively
embraced and supported by the public and Brisbane media.
Ekka 2011 was successful in attracting more than 60 new exhibitors including
local food producers, gourmet dining choices, retailers and wineries.

“

After such a devastating start
to the year for many people,
Ekka 2011 was a time to showcase

the spirit, resilience
and community support of Queensland.”

111 food and beverage outlets
269 commercial outlets
including 19 showbag stands
83 rides and games
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Creating lifelong memories
In 2011, the RNA, together with ENERGEX, wanted to give children affected
by the January floods, a day to remember at the Ekka. More than 60 students,
teachers and parents from Murphy’s Creek State School spent a day at the Show
watching horses in the ENERGEX Community Arena, visiting the Animal Nursery
and enjoying the rides and showbags. Three weeks earlier, the RNA had asked
the Principal of Murphy's Creek State School Jo Sinclair-Jones and four of her
students to officially launch Ekka 2011.

12:39PM. 17 August 2011 Ekka.
Competitions for all ages.
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EKKA / ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW

5:17PM. 17 August 2011 Ekka.
Once a year get−together for city and country.

Best in Show

NEW CLASSES
Contemporary cake
decorating for juniors
Poultry—Novice Judges
Wyandottes and Modern
Games featured in poultry
competition
Coeliac sponge cakes
Two jewellery classes in
the lapidary competition
Unique felines, the Ocicat
and Sphynx
Speckle Parks and miniature
Redlines in the Stud Beef
Competition
Senior teams added to the
ENERGEX Race Around
Ekka
New showbag design
competition for primary
school students
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The 134th Ekka featured more than 23,000 entries across 42 sections, with new
classes introduced in cookery, education, poultry, feline and lapidary.
A far cry from the three cattle breeds at the first Show in 1876, Ekka 2011
featured 32 breeds with Speckle Parks and miniature Redlines included for
the first time and the return of the Lincoln Reds. The competition also drew
headlines as it featured the biggest bull at the Ekka in more than 20 years—
Monk—a 1.5 tonne Black Angus bull.
The Young Judges competition, which encourages judges under the age of 25
to compete across horse, beef, goats, dairy cattle and sheep classes, experienced
a 43 per cent increase in entries—the highest percentage increase for 2011. Other
significant increases occurred in pigeons, dairy goats, alpaca fleece, sculpture and
showjumping competitions.
Ekka 2011 attracted some of the best experts in their field, with 11 international
judges from Canada, Japan, New Zealand, South Africa and the United States of
America in attendance.

World−class entertainment
For the first time Grammy Award winners took to the Ekka stage in a concert series
that will go down in history. Brisbane’s own Wolfmother attracted a full house of
1,400 to their first ever performance at the Show, while Grinspoon, who performed
at the Ekka in 2005, opened the entertainment line-up on August 12. Visitors were
also treated to performances by operatic ensemble, The Ten Tenors, 14 year old
Jack Vidgen, winner of reality show Australia’s Got Talent, and Shannon Noll.

In the spotlight

MOST POPULAR EKKA
COMPETITIONS IN 2011
1. Canine
2,489

2. Horses in Action
2,108

3. Poultry

Ekka 2011 generated more than 12,500 stories, worth more than $20.5 million
in free publicity to the RNA, reaching a potential audience of more than 200 million
people. A major coup for the Ekka this year was having Channel 9’s national flagship
morning programs, The Today Show and the Kerri-Anne show, broadcast live over
three days. They were part of more than 600 media personnel who were on grounds
to provide comprehensive coverage of the state’s biggest event across television,
radio, print and online mediums.

2,056

4. Stud Beef Cattle

Right from birth
1,584

5. Woodchop & Sawing
1,428

6. Photography
1,169

7. Painting & Drawing
990

8. Education on Show
939

9. Stud Horses
916

10. Creative Art & Craft

The Ekka has its own unique population—from the birth of lambs in the Little
Miracles Newborn Corner to 91 year old dogs—giving visitors a glimpse of the
entire circle of life.
Some of the Ekka’s biggest attractions in 2011 came from the smallest of animals.
The Animal Nursery continued to be one of the most popular exhibits, with more
than 130,000 people visiting 400 baby animals. Nearly 90 lambs were born at the
Show in the unique Little Miracles Newborn Corner. This new life centre featured
an open pen dedicated for lambs and their mothers to show the bonding process
after birth. A documentary was also prepared for the first time to illustrate the
entire journey of the pregnant ewes including their first ultrasounds. To cater for
the increasing number of spectators, cameras were built into the birthing pen
which displayed images onto a large screen.

907

EKKA BIRTHS
2009

86

2010

2011 Total

40
107

233

100

150

120

Lambs born

370
Chickens hatched
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EKKA / ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW

Fabulous food

FOOD HITS
2010

2011

Oysters
15,400
40,000

Food has played an integral part in the history of the Ekka from fairy floss to
Strawberry Sundaes and dagwood dogs. The RNA’s commitment to improved
food choices at the Show continued into 2011 with the facelift of the Ekka’s iconic
Strawberry Sundae, the introduction of the Royal Queensland Food and Wine
Show Stage and the brand new Royal Queensland Steakhouse.

Prawns
9,400
24,400

Glasses of wine from the Seafood
and Wine Bar
1,820
8,616

CWA Scones
4,375
10,600

Slices of woodﬁre pizza
16,000
18,400

Coon cheese toasties
17,000
23,770
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Some of Brisbane’s leading food critics praised the improvements made by
the RNA in 2011 including the quality of ingredients, the selection available
and the value for money.

New benchmark for Ekka icon
This year, the RNA announced the Ekka Strawberry Sundaes would be changed
for the first time in 60 years to feature award-winning handmade ice-cream
from the Mammino family of Childers. With 50 per cent more strawberries
and all ingredients Queensland grown, the RNA was proud this Ekka tradition
could actively support a small regional business. Anthony and Teena Mammino
are cane farmers who started making ice-cream from a recipe of Teena’s
grandmother. They operate a small ice-creamery near Childers and when the
RNA approached them in 2011, it was almost a dream come true. This enormous
task created an extra six jobs in the local community. Since 1950, these treats
have been devoured by millions of people and for more than 20 years they
have helped fund around $11 million in vital transplant research through
the Prince Charles Hospital Foundation.

“

Some of Brisbane’s leading food critics praised
the improvements made by the RNA in 2011 including

the quality of ingredients,
the selection available, and the value for money.”

Australian produce on show

FOOD ON OFFER

22
coffee
shops

4

confectionery
stalls

11

Designed to showcase the best of Australian produce, the new initiative brought
the Ekka a step closer to becoming Queensland’s finest foodie haven for 10 days
each year.

dine in
venues

13

28

international
choices

fresh and
healthy
options

34

25

Woolworths Fresh
Food Pavilion stands
offering gourmet
‘take home’
foods

Visitors to Ekka 2011 were able to sample award-winning food and watch these
products being used in dishes on the RNA’s brand new Royal Queensland Food
and Wine Show Stage. Celebrity chef Dominique Rizzo was the Ekka’s new food
ambassador and cooked onstage each day alongside some of Brisbane’s great
chefs including Minh Le of Medusa Dining and Mark Newman of Citron. The stage
featured products from the RNA’s Royal Queensland Food and Wine Show which
unearthed Australia’s finest beef, lamb, wine, ice-cream, cheese and beer, and
Queensland’s best sausage.

fast food
outlets

11

gourmet food
outlets

Royal Queensland Steakhouse
In addition to award-winning produce onstage from the Royal Queensland Food
and Wine Show, the RNA also introduced a fine dining restaurant to Ekka 2011.
The Royal Queensland Steakhouse, which served Australia’s best steak the AAco
Master Kobe Wagyu, was a sleeper hit enticing politicians, celebrities, mums and
dads to feast their way through more than 2,300 main meals.

Food hits of the Show
A pie created especially for Ekka 2011 proved a hit in the Gourmet Harvest
precinct. The triple prime beef pie, made by Piefection, received praise from
Brisbane foodies alike.
The Seafood and Wine Bar returned in 2011 and demand was overwhelming
with double the oysters, triple the prawns and five times the wine sold during
the 10 days of Show compared to 2010. The Woolworths Fresh Food Pavilion
also continued to be one of the Ekka’s most popular attractions featuring 70
vendors and serving everything from yum cha to cupcakes.

9

juice bars

14

25

sandwich
bars

sweets and
dessert
stalls
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“I thought the overall quality
was really good. Everything
was well made, there were
quality ingredients. I think
it’s a really impressive
selection of food.”
Ellie Paxton-Hall
MasterChef contestant
The Courier−Mail, August 14 2011, Page 26.

“Something for everyone,
from the budget−conscious
cheese toastie to the best
steak in Oz.”
David Pugh
Restaurant Two owner-chef
The Courier−Mail, August 12 2011, Page 9.

“The Strawberry Sundaes are
so, so good. I don’t remember
them ever being as good
before as they are this year—
it must be the ice−cream.”
Georgia Waters
Brisbane Times Journalist
Brisbane Times, August 12 2011.

1:46PM. 16 August 2011 Ekka.
New Strawberry Sundaes for the 2011 Show.
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EKKA / ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW

In the classroom
The Ekka is Queensland’s largest classroom with tens of thousands of students
participating in educational activities or entering competitions. At the first Show
in 1876, students competed in six classes of competition—plain needlework,
fancy needlework and embroidery, mechanical contrivances, woodcarving,
collections of natural history and drawing.* There are now 16 major youth
competition categories ranging from agriculture to poetry, beef and woodchop.

14,700
Ekka Learning Trail
booklets distributed

Budding filmmakers

1,300
students attended Rural
Discovery Day

4,814

Entries for the popular ENERGEX Race Around Ekka competition more than
doubled in 2011 to 48 teams, up from 21 in the previous year. This competition
is the only contest of its kind run by a Royal Show in Australia and challenges
teams of students to film, edit and produce a 60 second ad in just 48 hours.
The competition expanded in 2011 to cater for both junior and senior teams.
Coombabah State High School and Anglican Church Grammar School were
awarded for their creativity and humour, taking out the top prizes in their sections.

Showbag design

students competed
in the Urban Upbeat
Competition

Primary school students had the chance to become an official Ekka showbag
judge in a competition launched this year. By designing their own dream
showbag, the winning designer brought their entire class to preview and test
Ekka showbags days before the Show opened.

Cheesemaking workshops

939
entries received in the
Education on Show
competition

Through the RNA’s innovative Royal Queensland Food and Wine Show,
cheesemaking workshops for Queensland teachers were conducted in February
2011. As the only program of its kind in Australia, 40 Queensland teachers from
24 different schools travelled from as far as Bundaberg, Dalby and Mackay
to learn from internationally renowned cheese expert Russell Smith.
Almost doubling in popularity in their second year, the workshops are designed
to show teachers how to produce award-winning cheese before they return to
their classrooms. The camembert and blue style cheeses made by the students
are then entered into the Student Made Cheese Competition at the Royal
Queensland Food and Wine Show in June.

3,743
students attended
on Ekka school
days

Free Ekka tickets

40
Queensland teachers
participated in the
cheesemaking
workshops

For the first time, the RNA offered one teacher schools throughout Queensland
free tickets to the Ekka as part of its ongoing commitment to education
and bridging the city/country divide. The RNA offered almost 2,700 tickets
to the 92 qualifying schools providing the teacher, plus each student and an
accompanying parent free entry to this year's Show. As a result, 15 schools
and almost 500 people travelled to the Ekka from as far as 625 kilometres away.

48
teams in the
ENERGEX Race
Around Ekka
competition

* Information sourced from ‘Showtime—A History of the Brisbane Exhibition’
by Joanne Scott and Ross Laurie, 2008.
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11:53AM. 18 August 2011 Ekka.
Chips will ﬂy.
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7:15PM. 4 December 2011 Stereosonic.
Sold out crowd of 25,000.

Photo courtesy of rukes.com.
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ROYAL QUEENSLAND FOOD AND WINE SHOW

Overview

The Ekka’s new fine dining restaurant, the Royal
Queensland Steakhouse, proved popular at the
2011 Show serving Australia’s best steak—the AAco
Master Kobe Wagyu—as judged in our RQFWS
Branded Beef Competition.

2011 CHAMPIONS
CHEESE & DAIRY PRODUCE
Grand Champion Dairy Product of Show
Old Telegraph Road Heritage Blue
Jindi Cheese Pty Ltd, Gippsland VIC

ICE-CREAM, GELATO & SORBET
Grand Champion Ice−Cream, Gelato
or Sorbet of Show
Banana Ice-Cream
Caffé e Gelato Milany, Hamilton QLD

BRANDED BEEF
Champion Branded Beef of Show
Master Kobe Wagyu
Australian Agricultural Company,
Dalby QLD

BRANDED LAMB
Branded Lamb Trophy Winner
Country Fresh Lamb
Country Fresh Nationwide, Armidale NSW

WINE
The Courier−Mail Trophy
(Champion Wine of Show)
Seppelt Drumborg Riesling 2005
Treasury Wine Estates, Nuriootpa SA

BEER
Grand Champion Beer of Show
Kosciuszko Pale Ale
Lion, Jindabyne NSW
34
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In 2009 the RNA introduced the Royal Queensland Food and Wine Show
(RQFWS) and placed four existing competitions under the new brand—the Royal
Queensland Wine Show, the Dairy Produce Show, Branded Beef Competition
and the Sausage King Competition. A year later new competitions for lamb,
olive oil and beer were added, growing the popularity and prestige of the
RQFWS. In 2011 the RNA expanded the RQFWS to include a new competition
for ice-cream, gelato and sorbet, as part of its commitment to unearth the
nation’s finest food and wine.
Due to unfavourable season conditions, the 2011 Olive Oil Show was cancelled.

Year of firsts
In only its fourth year, the RQFWS conducted an Australian first competition
dedicated to judging the best in sorbets, gelato and ice-cream. It represented the
first time sorbet was included in a major national competition and attracted a
58 per cent increase in entries when compared to numbers in the previous format.
In 2011, the Royal Queensland Wine Show featured four Masters of Wine on the
judging panel—a great feat for the RNA and competitors, considering there are
only 299 worldwide. Recognised as the highest achievement in the international
wine community, Masters of Wine Ned Goodwin from Japan, Peter ScudamoreSmith and Andrew Corrigan from Brisbane and Philip Reedman from Adelaide,
were part of the panel which judged almost 2,000 entries from 239 wineries.

NUMBER OF ENTRIES

Australia’s best
The 2011 RQFWS attracted more than 2,600 entries. For the third consecutive
year the Cheese and Dairy Produce Show experienced increased entries
with 475 received—up 30 per cent overall, a 28 per cent jump in cheeses,
a 30 per cent increase in desserts, a 81 per cent increase in milks and creams
and a 50 per cent increase in new exhibitors.
The beer competition experienced a 15 per cent increase in entry numbers
and featured some of the world’s biggest breweries including Lion and Carlton
and United Brewers. The competition also expanded with new classes and
trophies added.

Wine
Cheese & Dairy Produce
Ice-Cream, Gelato & Sorbet
Beer
Branded Beef
Branded Lamb

More than 500 deli bags
and 3,000 Wagyu tasting
plates were sold at the Royal
Queensland Deli.

“

In 2011 the RNA expanded the RQFWS
to include a new competition for

ice-cream, gelato and sorbet,
as part of its commitment to unearth
the nation’s ﬁnest food and wine.”

The Ekka’s brand new Royal
Queensland Steakhouse sold
more than 500 kilograms of
award−winning Master Kobe
Wagyu steaks.
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3:09PM. 17 August 2011 Ekka.
More than 400,000 people attended Ekka 2011.
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INTERACTION

Introduction
The rise of social media and ever improving internet speeds have revolutionised
the way people access and communicate information. Now, more than ever,
multiple instantaneous digital platforms are enabling the population to choose
how they want to be informed and from where. The RNA is actively embracing
new technologies to improve communications with its patrons and to keep the
community informed. It also allows the organisation to gain a better insight
into what visitors want from events and provides an invaluable way of having
a conversation that both the RNA and its customers can benefit from.

First Ekka iPhone app
The RNA launched the Ekka’s first iPhone app in 2011 enabling visitors to
maximise their experience by creating their own itinerary, showbag wish list
and plan of must try rides. For more than a week the brand new app placed
in the top five free entertainment apps in Australia with 32,134 downloads.
Showbags trumped as the most popular feature by far, with more than
622,000 page views made. The average user spent more than one hour on
the app and saved money by redeeming a total of 2,700 virtual coupons.

“

The rise of social media and
ever improving internet speeds have
revolutionised the way people access and

communicate information."
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EKKA WEBSITE SUCCESS
49% increase
in Ekka website traffic

11 million page views
increase of 52%

7.5 minutes

INTERACTION

Rise of social media
Social media has radically changed the communication landscape in a relatively
short period of time. In the space of little more than six years, the world’s most
popular social media website, Facebook, has grown from a college campus
friends list to a user base of more than 800 million people.*
The Ekka’s Facebook page is used as an interactive platform to not only relay
information to its followers but also engage them in discussions through the use
of competitions and prizes. In 2010 the Ekka had 5,974 Facebook fans; this year
it grew to 19,507—an increase of 233 per cent.

average time spent on website

Most viewed pages
home, showbags, online tickets
and What’s On

35,500 tickets sold online
increase of 25%

Two new Facebook apps were built in 2011 for the ENERGEX Race Around Ekka
and Triple M’s Show Starter competition, giving fans the opportunity to vote for
their favourite entry in each competition. These new apps attracted significant
interaction from the Ekka’s Facebook fans with more than 4,500 votes received
and the ENERGEX Race Around Ekka app generating 1,200 new fans in just
24 hours. Facebookers crowned Coombabah State High School’s film with
the viewer’s choice award, and placed Prefontaine into the finals to become
Wolfmother’s support act.
A special competition was also introduced to the Ekka Facebook page with visitors
able to vote for the People’s Choice Canine Award. Run on the final day of Show,
the competition culminated with more than 25,000 post views and more than
800 votes.
Ekka 2010 launched a superstar in mascot Bobbi-Jo. Returning this year Bobbi-Jo
showed his Facebook friends around the Ekka, the sites to visit and the food to
taste, plus offered prizes each day to those who could find him around the grounds.

Recruiting online
In the past year, the RNA Showgrounds’ casual staff Facebook fans have increased
by more than 87 per cent. As the primary method of communication for casual bar
staff and the instantaneous nature of Facebook, the time between advertising job
vacancies and recruitment is reduced. Each post engages an average of 157 users
and reaches an additional 543. In the past two months alone the reach of the page
has grown from 800 to 3,200—an increase of 400 per cent.

* Information sourced from Facebook, 2011.
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ONLINE ENTRIES USAGE
FOR NEW COMPETITIONS
Total Entries Received
Entries Submitted Online %

75%
Beer
55

65%
Sculpture
46

New look websites
A new year brought a new look to websites across several brands—RNA, RNA
Showgrounds and the Ekka. Cleaner designs and new navigation pathways were
implemented on all websites to ensure key content was easier for users to locate.
A redesigned homepage was introduced to the Ekka website highlighting each
day’s events, while also including an itinerary builder which allowed visitors to
save their favourite events to a calendar. Social media was further integrated with
Facebook posts streaming live onto the page, plus a simplified ticketing process
and online accreditation for the more than 600 media personnel.
The RNA Showgrounds website also received a welcomed revamp in 2011,
with the inclusion of a full calendar of upcoming events. This provides essential
information for attendees and an invaluable advertising opportunity for event
organisers. The venue hire information now features more visuals and graphics
whilst still allowing selection assistance based on capacities, size and layouts.

Ekka Learning Trail

44%
Photography
1,169

35%
Creative Art and
Craft
907

33%
Cookery
826

26%
Painting and
Drawing
990

This year brought a brand new online element to the Ekka Learning Trail with
the integration of QR (or quick response) codes at five points along the course.
Designed to decode content at high speed, participants were required to take
a quick snapshot of the code to unlock the answer using their smart phone or
computers. Along with this, the Ekka Learning Trail experienced an increase
of almost 2,000 this year with 14,700 booklets distributed.

Online entries
For the first time, beer, sculpture, photography, creative art and craft, cookery,
painting and drawing and dairy cattle competitors were given the option to enter
their exhibits online for the 2011 Show. There are now 15 competitions across the
Ekka and Royal Queensland Food and Wine Show which have online capabilities,
and 62 per cent of competitors, who have the option, choose to use it—almost
2,000 extra individual entries, or 14 per cent more, compared to 2010. This ability
enables a more streamlined, faster process for competitors while also providing
them with an instantaneous confirmation of their entry. The standouts of 2011
included the Stud Beef Competition with 88 per cent entered online, while the
Led Steer Competition experienced a 23 per cent increase, to 48 per cent,
in online entries.

10%
Dairy Cattle
872
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12:17PM. 16 August 2011 Ekka.
Animal Boulevard.
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GOVERNANCE
RNA EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

David Thomas

Daniel (Dan) L O’Connor

RNA President

Senior Vice-President

BCom LLB Hons Qld

DipTchng BCAE BEdSt Qld LLB QUT LLM Qld FAIM MAICD

David Thomas became the RNA President
in 2011 after serving on the Council for nine
years, the last two as Senior Vice-President.
He is Chair of the RNA’s Development and
Planning; Woodchop; and Entries Committees
and is a member of the Appeals and Disciplinary;
Space and Letting; Veterinary; Catering and
House; and Industry Committees. He is a
Member and the alternate Chair of the Joint
Management Committee for the RNA
Showgrounds Regeneration Project. A solicitor
by profession, he is senior partner at Minter Ellison
Lawyers in Brisbane and has more than 25 years
experience as a dispute resolution lawyer with a
broad ranging commercial practice. He is Chair
of the Queensland Maritime Museum, a member
of the Lord Mayor of Brisbane’s Business Round
Table, a judge of the Premier of Queensland’s
Export Awards, the Chair of the Higher Education
Academic Board of Study Group Australia, a
Director of Artisan, and a Director of The Society
of The Sacred Advent Schools Pty Ltd, which
is the trustee of St Margaret’s and St Aidan’s
Anglican Girls Schools. He is an Adjunct Professor
at Murdoch University.

Dan O’Connor is a Barrister-at-Law, Chief
Executive of the Bar Association of Queensland
and Secretary of the Australian Bar Association.
He has been an RNA Councillor since 2000,
has served as Honorary Treasurer and Junior
Vice-President and was elected Senior Vicepresident in September 2011. He is actively
involved in the RNA and oversees many aspects
of Show planning including: Chairman of Space
and Letting; Entertainment; and Appeals and
Disciplinary Committees and a member of
Horse and Arena; Joint Stock; and Woodchop
Committees. He is a Trustee of the Royal
Agricultural Society of the Commonwealth.
In addition, he is involved in a number of
charitable organisations, in particular he is
Chairman of the Residential Committee of the
Salvation Army Red Shield Appeal, is a Trustee
of the Edinburgh Declaration Trust and is a
member of the Council of the Anglican Church
Grammar School.
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Angus G Adnam
Junior Vice-President

Managing Director of AAA Livestock Services
Pty Ltd, Angus Adnam has brought a wealth
of experience and energy to the RNA Council
since his appointment in November 2005.
A RNA Steward and Honorary Council Steward
since 1978, he was elected Junior Vice-President
in September 2011 and is a member on the
Executive; Beef Cattle; Joint Stock; and
Agricultural Hall; and Industry Committees.
He is Chairman of the Food and Wine; Meat
Hall; and Catering and House Committees.

Catherine Sinclair
Honorary Treasurer
BSc MA Illinois FAICD FAIM

Management consultant Catherine Sinclair joined
the RNA Council in 2007 and in March 2010 was
elected to the position of Honorary Treasurer.
She brings extensive professional experience in
corporate sector strategic planning, systems and
human resource development. She has specific
experience as a Board Director in Transport and
the Arts and as a tribunal member in the Primary
Industry Sector. Current positions include
Director, Southern Regional Water Pipeline;
Director, Queensland Bulk Water Authority;
Director, Frontline Defence Services; and
Director of The Consultancy Bureau Pty Ltd.
Philip S Harpham BVSc Qld
A veterinarian and grazier by profession,
Philip Harpham has been an RNA Councillor
since 2001. He is a member of the Executive
Committee and chairs the Dairy Cattle, Goat
and Pig; Beef Cattle and Boer Goats; and the
Veterinary Committee. He is also a member of
the Development and Planning; Meat Hall; Food
and Wine and QCAS National Finals Committees.

Jan M McMillan
A Thoroughbred breeder, national and
international horse judge, owner of racehorses
and many show horses, Jan McMillan has brought
considerable expertise to the RNA Council since
her election in 1997. In 2007, She became the
first female ringmaster in the history of the
RNA. She is currently a member of the Executive
Committee and also chairs the Horse and Arena,
and Quilts Across Queensland Committees.
She is a member of the Entertainment; Entries;
Veterinary; Food and Wine; and Joint Stock
Committees. She is Proprietor of the Australian
Show Horse Hall of Fame and is a member of
the Queensland Racehorse Owners Association,
Sunshine Coast Turf Club, Brisbane Racing Club,
Deputy Chairman of the Licenses Assistance
Association and is a committee member of
the Gympie Turf Club.
Professor Peter Little LLB LLM Qld PhD Bond
FAIM FCPA

Peter Little was elected to the RNA Council
in March 2009, is a member of the Executive
Committee and Chairman of the Education
and the Future Committee. He is also a member
of the Finance; Audit; and Development and
Planning Committees and is co-convenor of the
Future Directions Committee. The Executive
Dean of the Faculty of Business at the Queensland
University of Technology, he holds a Bachelor
of Laws and Master of Laws from the University
of Queensland and PhD from Bond University
Law School. He is a Fellow, Australian Institute
of Management; Fellow, CPA Australia; and
Fellow, Queensland Academy of Arts and
Sciences. He is a Director of Ormiston College,
consultant to McCullough Robertson Lawyers
Brisbane, is a Director of the RACQ Foundation
Pty Ltd and is a member of the Governing
Committee of the Queensland Business
Leaders Hall of Fame.
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GOVERNANCE
RNA COUNCIL

Alastair D Bassingthwaighte

Tim Fairfax AM FAICD

A grazier and RNA Stud Cattle Exhibitor from
Yarrawonga-Waco Santa Gertrudis Stud, Alastair
Bassingthwaighte has served on the RNA Council
since 1981. He is an active member of the Beef
Cattle and Boer Goats; Joint Stock; and Meat Hall
Committees.

Tim Fairfax joined the RNA Council in 2004
and is Chairman of the Flower and Garden and
Pisciculture Committees and is a member of the
Appeals and Disciplinary; and Audit Committees.
A grazier and philanthropist, he is Trustee of
the Queensland Art Gallery, President of the
Queensland Art Gallery Foundation, Chairman
of the Salvation Army Brisbane Advisory
Board, Chairman of the Vincent Fairfax Family
Foundation, Chairman of the Tim Fairfax Family
Foundation, Director of the Foundation for
Rural and Regional Renewal and Councillor
of Philanthropy Australia.

Lionel J Blumel
Lionel Blumel has been involved with the RNA
as a Steward since 1986 and was elected to the
RNA Council in November 2006. He is Chairman
of the Canine Committee and in 2009 managed
the newly established Feline Competition. He is a
member of the RNA Council as a member of the
Animal Boulevard; Joint Stock; Development and
Veterinary Committees. He is also a Councillor
of the Canine Control Council (Queensland)
which services the Dog World of Queensland.
He is a working member of the Samford Show
Society and past President of the National
Dalmatian Council of Australia.
Tony M Carew
Tony Carew is a Business Improvement
Consultant and was elected to the RNA Council
in February 2004. A Ring Councillor and Member
of the Catering and House; Space and Letting;
Food and Wine; Joint Stock; and Horse and
Arena Committees, he is also co-convenor
of the Future Directions Committee.

Ian Ferguson BA Qld JP (Qual)
Ian Ferguson is a longstanding member of the
RNA, who has previously served as an Honorary
Ring Steward and Honorary Council Steward.
He stewarded in the horse section and assisted
the running of the night program for a number of
years. An RNA Councillor since 2007, he currently
serves on the Entertainment; Young Judges;
and Horse and Arena Committees. He retired
as an Inspector of Police at the Ethical Standards
Command and now undertakes a range of
community, hobby and study activities. He has
a broad background of community involvement,
currently as a member of the PCYC State Board
and Chairperson of Carindale PCYC.
Michael N Grieve BEd NT DipEd BCAE

Ross H Douglas
An RNA Councillor since 2004, retired grazier
Ross Douglas is Chairman of the Animal
Boulevard; and Horse Breeds Expo Committees.
He is a member of the Appeals and Disciplinary;
Finance; Audit; Education and the Future; and
Joint Stock Committees.
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Michael Grieve was elected to the RNA Council in
September 2006. An education professional and
Thoroughbred breeder, his roles inside the RNA
include being a member of the Horse and Arena
Committee and Finance and Audit Committee.
Outside the RNA he is a Committee Member
and Ringmaster of the Ipswich Show Society.

Susan J Hennessey

Gary Noller

Susan Hennessey brings to the RNA Council
considerable expertise in the area of fine arts
and management. As an RNA exhibitor and
Steward for many years, she was elected to
the RNA Council in 2001. The first female RNA
Councillor elected to the Executive Committee,
serving on this committee from 2006 to 2010, she
is also a past member of the Budget and Finance
and Marketing and Sponsorship Committees.
She also Chairs the Fine Arts Committee which
includes painting and drawing, sculpture, cookery,
creative art and craft and photography. She is
currently a member of the Catering and House
and the Leasing Committees.

A respected beef seed stock producer from the
Darling Downs, Gary Noller was elected to the
RNA Council in March 2010. Before becoming
an RNA Councillor he was an active supporter
of the association having judged the Led Steer
Competition at a number of Royal Queensland
Shows and as a member of the RNA Beef Cattle
and Boer Goats Committee, of which he is still a
member. He is also a member of the Entries; Joint
Stock; Meat Hall and Young Judges Committees.

Phil Kesby CertConst Hons, Licensed Builder
(NSW & QLD) GAICD
Phil Kesby was elected to the RNA Council
in October 2011 after serving as an Honorary
Council Steward and Steward in the woodchop
section for more than six years. He has more
than 33 years experience in infrastructure
delivery and property related industries, across
a wide range of complex projects. He holds
close associations with the business community
and is Chairman of the Brisbane Infrastructure
Council, Board Member of Queensland Urban
Utilities, Director of Invest Logan, Board Member
of Field Services Group, Executive Member of
the Brisbane Development Association and
Abu Dhabi representative for Brisbane’s Sister
Cities program. He is also a proud member of the
Salvation Army Red Shield Appeal Coordination
Committee for Brisbane and Hear and Say
Foundation Leadership Committee.
Duncan McInnes
Duncan McInnes brings extensive knowledge of
the dairy farming industry to his newly elected
position on the RNA Council. He runs a large dairy
property, Inverclyde, in Harrisville and also has
interests in a lucerne and cropping farm. He is
heavily involved with local committees and also
a Director of Dairy Farmers Milk Co-operative
which represents 700 members across Australia,
and a Past Director of Australian Co-operative
Foods (Dairy Farmers) for 12 years.

William Roberts
William Roberts is a stud merino sheep and
cattle producer and joined the RNA Council in
November 2011 following years of involvement
at the Charleville Show and the Sheep Spectacular
in Goondiwindi and Toowoomba. He operates his
property, Victoria Downs in Morven, and has been
actively involved in committees including AgForce
and the Leading Sheep Committee for South West
Queensland. He is a serving Councillor and former
Past President of the Queensland Merino Stud
Sheepbreeders' Association Incorporated; Past
President of the Australian Association of Stud
Merino Breeders and Past Chairman of Wool Poll.
Dr Bill Ryan MB BS Qld FRACS RFD
Dr Bill Ryan is an orthopaedic spinal surgeon
and has served as an RNA Councillor since 2000.
He is Chairman of the Poultry; and Wine and
Brandy Committees and a member of the
Catering and House; Fine Foods; Joint Stock;
and Animal Boulevard Committees. He has
championed the development, growth and
continued success of the popular food and wine
show stage, which showcases Queensland’s
best produce. Prior to joining the RNA Council,
he was an Honorary Council Steward for the
Royal Queensland Wine Show.
Joan F Scott BA Qld JP (Qual)
As an active member of the RNA Council since
1996, Joan Scott has also served on the Bungil
Shire Council and Rural Lands Protection Board
and co-authored In Champagne Country and
Fight for a Just Cause. She chairs the Fleece
Breeds Committee and is a member of the
Appeals and Disciplinary; Entertainment;
Catering and House; Education and the Future;
Young Judges; Joint Stock; Meat Hall; and
Animal Boulevard Committees.
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GOVERNANCE
RNA MANAGEMENT

Jonathan Tunny

Steven Grimes

Chief Executive

Project Director, RNA Showgrounds Redevelopment

BBus GradDipAdvAcctg QIT GMQ AGSM FCA FAICD

BE Qld

Jonathan Tunny was appointed as the RNA’s
Chief Executive nine years ago, following a year
of service on the RNA Council. A Chartered
Accountant by profession, Jonathan has an
extensive business background spanning more
than 30 years. Since 2002, he has been at the
forefront of the biggest change undertaken by
the RNA, the $2.9 billion 15 year regeneration
project, and was instrumental in the seven year
planning process. His vision for the regeneration
and continued support of the RNA Showgrounds
events precinct has been imperative in securing
the financial viability of the RNA. Jonathan
also holds a national media and public profile,
speaking at business and community events,
and is the spokesperson for all RNA brands.

đƳ Project planning, management and delivery
đƳ Stakeholder communication and consultation
Steven joined the RNA in September 2009 to
oversee the association’s role with its project
partner, Lend Lease, in the delivery of the
$2.9 billion RNA Showgrounds Regeneration
Project. Steven brings with him more than
23 years professional experience in Australia,
the United Kingdom and the United States
delivering award-winning, large scale, and mixed
use developments. Previous positions include
Team Leader for Lend Lease Water Alliance on
the Gold Coast, Development Operations Manager
and Project Director for Actus Lend Lease in the
United States.
Martin Cichero

Brendan Christou

Manager, Facilities

Chief Operating Officer

BSurv UQ Grad Cert (Facility Management) QUT JP (Qual)

BBus QUT MBA Curtin CPA

đƳ Asset management

đƳ RNA operations

đƳ Maintenance

đƳ Financial management

đƳ Contractor management

đƳ Information technology

đƳ Stores

đƳ Member services
đƳ RQS and RQFWS coordination of
competitions, judges and stewards
Certified Practicing Accountant (CPA) Brendan
Christou commenced at the RNA in March 2004
as the organisation’s Financial Controller. His role
has evolved considerably since then, with increased
responsibility seeing him promoted to Corporate
Services Manager in 2008 and to Chief Operating
Officer in 2009. Brendan’s previous experience
spans across the retail, engineering and financial
services industries. He completed his Master of
Business Administration from Curtin University
in 2008. Brendan is a member of the Brisbane
Development Association’s Executive Committee
and is Treasurer for the Ambassadors of St John’s
Cathedral.
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Martin joined the RNA in July 2009 as Facility
Manager, coordinating the association’s building,
cleaning, maintenance and landscaping services
while overseeing the RNA’s 17 full-time facility
staff, who maintain the organisation's assets
and provide support services to all events.
His previous experience includes positions in
Survey and Development consultancy companies
and the Department of Natural Resources.
Martin has spent more than a decade maintaining
and operating infrastructure for two of Australia’s
largest residential communities, Sanctuary Cove
and Hope Island Resort.

Veronica Carew

Sujoy Dey

Manager, Communications

General Manager, Operations

đƳ Integrated communication strategies, crisis
management and public relations initiatives
đƳ Media and issues management
đƳ Management of internal and external
communications
Veronica joined the RNA in April 2010, bringing
with her 18 years experience in media and public
relations. A strategic corporate communications
manager Veronica has 10 years experience in the
not-for-profit sector, at a state and national level,
developing strategies and campaigns to promote
the interests of agriculture, education and the
over 50s in the media. Previously Veronica spent
eight years working as a journalist and editor
in the Australian print media.

Diploma of Hotel Management (First Division),
University of Delhi

Sujoy joined the RNA in October 2011 bringing
with him more than 20 years experience in
the hotel and conventions industries across
Australasia. In his current role as General Manager
of Operations, Sujoy’s responsibility ranges from
operations planning, execution and overseeing
of current events, and overseeing the set up and
operations of the new convention and exhibition
centre. Sujoy has previously been the Director of
Operations for Borneo Convention Centre Kuching
and had a 21 year career tenure with Adelaide
Convention Centre.
Sue Hocking
General Manager, Sales and Marketing

Don Savage

Advanced Dip Tourism Management, Adelaide College of TAFE

Manager, Royal Queensland Show Leasing

đƳ Development and implementation of sales and
marketing strategies for the RNA Showgrounds
precinct

Assoc.Dip.E&C SBIT TVOCP

đƳ Promotion, coordination and management
of exhibitor, carnival and retail leasing for
the Ekka
đƳ Coordination and management of RNA
operated catering for ‘out of Show’ events
Don Savage joined the RNA team in early 2006
after an extensive career spanning 40 years
with Network Ten in Brisbane. During this time
he managed the network’s broadcast onair operation; was Chief Engineer for almost
ten years; and Ten’s Pavilion Manager for the
duration of World Expo 88 at South Bank.

Sue joined the RNA in September 2011 bringing
with her 25 years experience, three years as
Director of Sales—Qatar National Convention
Centre (QNCC) and a 22 year career with Adelaide
Convention Centre. Sue held the role of Director—
Sales and Marketing in Adelaide before relocating
to Qatar to join the pre-opening team to manage
the set up of the sales and marketing department
at Qatar National Convention Centre.

Justin Grace
Manager, Marketing and Sponsorship
BBus, BA QUT

Justin joined the RNA in January 2011 and has a
dual qualification from the Queensland University
of Technology—Bachelor of Business, majoring
in Advertising and Bachelor of Arts, majoring
in Media Studies. He has eight years marketing
experience in the retail, leisure and food industry.
In his previous role as Executive Manager—
Communications at the Royal Children’s Hospital
Foundation, his responsibility was the portfolio
of media and sponsorship partnerships within the
private, media and government organisations.
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4:30PM. 17 August 2011 Ekka.
Farriers and blacksmiths.
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OFFICE BEARERS
Patron

Hon Councillors

Her Excellency
Ms Penelope Wensley AC
Governor of Queensland

A G Brimblecombe AM
W T Cummins
V E Edwards OAM
G J Hart AM
W R Lenehan
C H Meagher AM
L K Morris
L F Robertson
D C Sturrock
M F Talbot
B D Vickers
P F Wadley
A Warby OAM

President
D G Thomas
Vice-Presidents
D L O’Connor and A G Adnam
Honorary Treasurer
C J Sinclair
Council
A D Bassingthwaighte
L J Blumel
T M Carew
R H Douglas
T V Fairfax AM
I W Ferguson
M N Grieve
P S Harpham
S J Hennessey
P Kesby
Prof P C Little
D A McInnes
J M McMillan
G J Noller
W L Roberts
W E Ryan RFD
J F Scott

Chief Executive
J P Tunny
Auditor
C Skelton of BDO Audit (QLD) Pty Ltd

ABN 41 417 513 726
RNA Showgrounds
600 Gregory Terrace
Bowen Hills
Locked Bag 1010 Albion 4010
Telephone: 07 3253 3900
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF MEMBERS

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) of members of The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland
(RNA or the Association) will be held in the Commerce Building at the RNA Showgrounds, 600 Gregory Terrace, Bowen Hills,
Brisbane on Friday 30 March 2012, commencing at 9.00am.
Business
1. Conﬁrm Minutes of Annual General Meeting of Members held on 25 March 2011
2. Receive and adopt President’s and Councillors’ Reports and Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
3. Conﬁrmation of appointment of Messrs P Kesby, D A McInnes and W L Roberts
4. Election of Patron
5. Election of President and two Vice-Presidents for ensuing year
6. Election of nine Members of Council for a two year term
7. Such other business as may arise in accordance with the Rules

Jonathan Tunny
Chief Executive
17 February 2012

In accordance with the Rules of the Association, the following members of Council retire at the AGM and are eligible for re-election:
President
Mr D G Thomas
Senior Vice-President
Mr D L O’Connor
Junior Vice-President
Mr A G Adnam
Members of Council
Mrs J F Scott, Ms J McMillan, Dr W E Ryan, Mr P S Harpham, Ms C J Sinclair, Prof P C Little, Messrs G Noller, P Kesby and D A McInnes
In addition, valid nominations for the position of Councillor have been received from Mrs Annabelle Johnstone and Mr Fred Rainsford.
As there are eleven nominations for the nine available Council positions a poll must be conducted. Please refer below for details in
relation to the poll and lodgement of your Election Ballot Paper.
The following members of Council remain in office for a further twelve months:
Messrs A D Bassingthwaighte, T M Carew, R H Douglas, T V Fairfax AM, Mrs S J Hennessey, Messrs I W Ferguson, M N Grieve, L J Blumel
and W L Roberts
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COUNCILLORS’ REPORT

The Councillors present their report together with the ﬁnancial report of The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association
of Queensland for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the auditor’s report thereon.
Details of Councillors and the number of Council meetings (including meetings of Executive Committee) attended by each Councillor
of the Association during the ﬁnancial year are:

COUNCILLOR

Note

Mr A G Adnam

Year of
Appointment

Council Meetings

Executive
Committee Meetings

A

B

A

B

2005

12

13

11

11

10

11

0

2

9

11

11

11

Mr A D Bassingthwaighte

1

1981

9

13

Mr L J Blumel

1

2006

10

13

Mr T M Carew

1

2004

8

13

Mr R H Douglas

1

2004

11

13

Mr T V Fairfax AM

1

2004

7

13

Mr I W Ferguson

2007

12

13

Mr M N Grieve

2006

8

13

Mr P S Harpham

2001

12

13

Mrs S J Hennessey

2001

10

13

Mr P C Kenny

2

2008

2

10

Mr P Kesby

3

2011

2

2

1, 6

2009

11

13

4

2011

1

1

Mrs J M McMillan

1997

11

13

Mr Gary Noller

2010

11

13

Mr D L O’Connor

2000

12

13

2011

1

1

Dr W E Ryan RFD

2000

8

13

Mrs J F Scott

1996

11

13

Ms C J Sinclair

2007

13

13

11

11

Mr D G Thomas

2002

12

13

11

11

9

9

Prof P C Little
Mr D A McInnes

Mr W L Roberts

4

Mr W H Thompson

5

2000

5

10

Mr A G F Warby OAM

5

1972

9

10

A – Number of meetings attended
B – Number of meetings eligible to attend
Notes:
1. Leave of Absence Granted
2. Leave of Absence Granted. Passed away October 2011
3. Appointed to Council 20 October 2011
4. Appointed to Council 25 November 2011
5. Retired 30 September 2011
6. Appointed to Executive Council 30 November 2011
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COUNCILLORS’ REPORT
continued

Objectives and Strategy
for Achievement
The RNA’s mission is to maintain the
heritage and to further promote and
encourage the understanding and
development of the agricultural, pastoral,
horticultural, industrial, manufacturing
and cultural resources of the State of
Queensland.
The RNA’s vision is to provide a vibrant
destination with leading exhibition and
event facilities.
The RNA achieves its vision and mission
through staging the Royal Queensland
Show, operating a venue hire & event
management business and performing
leasing and asset management.
The RNA has also embarked on a
redevelopment program to transform
the Showgrounds into a vibrant mixed
use precinct that is utilised all year round.
The redevelopment will also provide
the Association with new and improved
exhibition facilities which form
a signiﬁcant part of the RNA strategy.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Association
are to provide facilities and personnel to
promote and encourage the development,
public interest and improvement of
the agricultural, pastoral, horticultural,
industrial, manufacturing and cultural
resources of the state of Queensland.
The RNA achieves its objectives via a
number of means, however its primary
method is through the staging of the Royal
Queensland Show in August each year.
The Show is the State’s premier exhibition
of the primary industries of Queensland.
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Performance Measurement
The surplus/(deﬁcit) from operations
was $20,835 (2010: $450,714).

Councillors’ Remuneration
Councillors receive no remuneration
for their services.

Indemniﬁcation and insurance
of Councillors and Officers
The Association has agreed to reimburse
the reasonable costs (including but not
limited to legal fees) incurred by any
current or past Councillor or Officer
in relation to the performance of his
or her duties as a Councillor or Officer
of the Association provided:

The Councillors have not included details
of the nature of the liabilities covered or
the amount of the premium paid in respect
of the Councillors’ and Officers’ liability
and legal expenses insurance contracts,
as such disclosure is prohibited under the
terms of the contract.

Auditor’s Independence
Declaration
The auditor’s independence declaration
forms part of the Councillors’ Report and
can be found on page 55.

Dated at Brisbane this 17 February 2012.
Signed in accordance with a resolution
of the Council.

(i) the person is not charged with any
offence, or if charged, is subsequently
acquitted of all charges;
(ii) any investigations or hearings do not
reveal conduct by that person which
constitutes conduct which breaches
that person’s ﬁduciary relationship
with the Association whether that
person is charged or not or convicted
or not;
(iii) the person’s conduct is not unbecoming
of a person holding the position, which
that person held at the time of the
conduct.
The level of such reimbursement is to be
set by the Executive Committee.

Insurance premiums
The Association has paid insurance
premiums for “Councillor’s and Officers’
and Supplementary Legal Expense
Insurance” since the end of the
previous year.

D G Thomas
President

C J Sinclair
Honorary Treasurer

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY C J SKELTON TO
THE COUNCILLORS OF THE ROYAL NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL
AND INDUSTRIAL ASSOCIATION OF QUEENSLAND

As lead auditor of The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland for the year ended 31 December 2011,
I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:
đƳ the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
đƳ any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

C J Skelton
Director
BDO Audit (QLD) Pty Ltd
Brisbane
Date: 17 February 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Royal National Agricultural and
Industrial Association of Queensland
(“the Association”) is incorporated under
the Royal National Agricultural and
Industrial Association of Queensland Act
1971 (“the Act”) and operates under the
provisions of the Act.
The Association has established Objects,
Rules and By-laws to effectively conduct
its affairs and operations.
Under the Act, the Minister must approve
any changes to the Objects and Rules of
the Association and receive the annual
ﬁnancial reports. The Association cannot
sell its land without the approval of the
Governor in Council.
While not required under the Act, the
Association endeavours where possible
to conduct its business to the standards
and requirements of a public company,
and in compliance with the spirit of
applicable legislation.

The Council
The Association is governed by a Council
that is constituted by the President,
the Senior Vice-President, Junior VicePresident and eighteen members elected
from the general body of members.
The Council meets monthly, or as required.
With the exception of Junior and Corporate
members, all other members of the
Association are permitted to hold office
and vote at any meetings of the members
of the Association.
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Councillors
Councillors are elected for a two year term.
The Council may appoint an eligible member
to ﬁll a casual vacancy. A Councillor may
not seek election or re-election after
attaining 72 years of age.
The President, the two Vice-Presidents
and nine Councillors are elected each year
by the members.
Honorary Councillors may be appointed
in recognition of past outstanding service
to the Association. Honorary Councillors
receive no remuneration, and are not
entitled to attend or vote at Council
Meetings.

Committees
An Executive Committee is established
under the Objects and Rules and has the
control of the ﬁnancial administration,
management, planning, strategic
development and general business of the
Association. It comprises the President,
two Vice-Presidents, Honorary Treasurer and
three members of Council. The Executive
Committee meets monthly or as required.
The Executive Committee or Council may
from time to time appoint Committees
consisting of such members of Council
and other persons as it may decide.
A Committee has the power to appoint a
sub-committee of its members and other
persons for the purpose of considering
such matters referred to it as it considers
desirable.

Councillors are elected annually to
Committee membership by the Council.
Most Councillors serve on one or more
Committees. Some Committees have
invited external members who possess
particular skills or expertise. The President
and Vice-Presidents are ex-officio members
of all Committees.
Eight Committees are established to assist
in the conduct of the Association’s general
operations—Finance; Audit; Marketing;
Development; House; Space and Letting;
Agricultural Development; and Future
Directions.
In addition to the Sectional Committees,
a number of other Committees are
established to assist in the general
conduct of the Royal Queensland Show
—Entries; Veterinary; Joint Stock; and
Appeals and Disciplinary.

Chief Executive
The Executive Committee appoints a
Chief Executive to manage the affairs
of the Association.

Remuneration
Councillors and Honorary Councillors
receive no remuneration. They may be
reimbursed for reasonable expenses
incurred in attending meetings of the
Council.
The remuneration and terms of
employment of the Chief Executive and
senior executives is determined by the
Executive Committee, and takes into
account current comparable market
remuneration and the desire to attract
and retain quality staff with appropriate
skills and experience.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
continued

Audit and Compliance

Reporting

The Association is subject to independent
external audit.

The Council reports to members through
publication of an Annual Report and
ﬁnancial statements, and at an Annual
General Meeting and periodically through
newsletters and other means.

Internal Controls
Internal control systems are established
to minimise risk and promote efficiency.
The Council receives comprehensive
monthly ﬁnancial and operational reports,
and measures performance against
detailed annual budgets.

As required by the Act, the Association
also submits a certiﬁed copy of the Annual
Report to the Chief Executive of the
relevant Government Department.

The Executive Committee reports and
distributes its meeting minutes to each
Council meeting.
Funds under management are subject
to investment policies that minimise risk
and seek fair returns.

Risk Management
The Association has adopted a range
of risk management practices to address
both normal business operational risk,
and those speciﬁc to the activities of the
Association—including bio-security, crowd
control, and environmental risks. These
practices include periodic and speciﬁc
external risk reviews.
Where possible, risks are externally
insured.
Councillors are covered by indemnities
extended by the Act. Employees of the
Association are covered by Directors’
and Officers’ Liability Insurance.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Note

2011 $

2010 $

REVENUE
Royal Queensland Show

3

13,681,629

13,580,146

Rent from ground facilities

3

8,040,842

5,982,477

Interest revenue

3

456,672

263,454

Other Income

3

1,132,234

997,647

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

10,152

(15,511)

Gain/(loss) on sale of ﬁnancial assets

97,775

258,821

150,000

150,000

23,569,304

21,217,034

Capital grants and subsidies

3

Total revenue
EXPENSES
Employee costs

4

6,363,670

5,419,852

Materials and services

5a

14,934,060

12,997,151

Depreciation and amortisation

5b

2,140,905

2,349,317

109,834

-

23,548,469

20,766,320

20,835

450,714

Unrealised loss on investments
Total expenses
Net operating surplus/(deﬁcit)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Decrease in fair value of available-for-sale ﬁnancial assets

(298,746)

4,616

Other comprehensive income for the year

(298,746)

4,616

Total comprehensive income for the year

(277,911)

455,330

The statement of comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the ﬁnancial statements set out on pages 62 to 83.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2011

Note

2011 $

2010 $

Cash and cash equivalents

7

524,049

231,108

Trade and other receivables

8

2,227,424

2,291,116

Other ﬁnancial assets

10

9,151,065

3,983,623

47,179

72,925

644,642

507,854

12,594,359

7,086,626

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories
Other assets

9

Total current assets
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Other ﬁnancial assets

10

2,260,875

4,073,677

Intangible assets

13

343,070

320,461

Property, plant and equipment

11

28,659,974

14,792,562

Land held for resale

12

5,834,000

4,701,215

Total non-current assets

37,097,919

23,887,915

Total assets

49,692,278

30,974,541

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

14

3,216,862

979,849

Provisions

15

105,195

131,251

Unearned income

16

5,199,539

2,073,680

8,521,596

3,184,780

Total current liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions

15

153,074

114,401

Borrowings

17

13,400,121

-

Advance land payments

18

216,551

-

Total non-current liabilities

13,769,746

114,401

Total liabilities

22,291,342

3,299,181

Net assets

27,400,936

27,675,360

27,041,161

19,413,325

83,876

7,989,623

Trust funds

275,899

272,412

Total funds

27,400,936

27,675,360

FUNDS
Accumulated surplus
Reserves

The statement of comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the ﬁnancial statements set out on pages 62 to 83.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Rain
Protection
Reserve $

Asset
Replacement
Reserve $

General
Reserve $

Asset
Revaluation
Reserve $

Accumulated
Surplus $

Trust
Funds $

Total
Funds $

3,500,000

3,375,000

125,775

988,848

19,413,325

272,412

27,675,360

-

20,835

-

20,835

Balance at 31
December 2010

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Surplus/Deﬁcit
for the year

-

-

-

Revaluation of
available-for-sale
ﬁnancial assets

-

-

-

(298,746)

-

-

(298,746)

Total comprehensive
income

-

-

-

(298,746)

20,835

-

(277,911)

(606,226)

7,607,001

3,487

3,487

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Transfer from reserve

(3,500,000)

Balance at 31
December 2011

(3,375,000)

(125,775)

-

-

-

83,876

27,041,161

275,899

27,400,936

Rain
Protection
Reserve $

Asset
Replacement
Reserve $

General
Reserve $

Asset
Revaluation
Reserve $

Accumulated
Surplus $

Trust
Funds $

Total
Funds $

3,500,000

3,375,000

125,775

984,232

18,962,611

272,060

27,219,678

Balance at 31
December 2009

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Surplus/Deﬁcit
for the year

-

-

-

-

450,714

-

450,714

Revaluation of
available-for-sale
ﬁnancial assets

-

-

-

4,616

-

-

4,616

Total comprehensive
income

-

-

-

4,616

450,714

-

455,330

Transfer from reserve

-

-

-

-

-

352

352

3,500,000

3,375,000

125,775

988,848

19,413,325

272,412

27,675,360

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Balance at 31
December 2010

The statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the ﬁnancial statements set out on pages 62 to 83.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Note

2011 $

2010 $

25,488,396

21,944,828

(23,007,220)

(19,548,107)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received

456,672

263,454

Dividends received

114,072

103,778

3,051,920

2,763,953

10,152

-

Net cash provided by operating activities

19(ii)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payments for property, plant and equipment

(15,720,359)

Proceeds from Lend Lease

3,216,551

(Payments for)/proceeds from other ﬁnancial assets
Net cash (used in) by investing activities

(4,702,183)
-

(3,665,444)

1,875,581

(16,159,100)

(2,826,602)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from QTC Loan

13,400,121

-

Net cash (used in) by ﬁnancing activities

13,400,121

-

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held

292,941

(62,649)

Cash at the beginning of the year

231,108

293,757

524,049

231,108

Cash at the end of the year

19(i)

The statement of cash ﬂows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the ﬁnancial statements set out on pages 62 to 83.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2011

1 The Association
The Royal National Agricultural and
Industrial Association of Queensland
(“the Association”) is a body corporate,
incorporated under the Royal National
Agricultural and Industrial Association
of Queensland Act 1971 (RNA Act)
as amended.
The ﬁnancial statements are presented
in the Australian currency.
The ﬁnancial report was authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution
of the Council on 17 February 2012.

2 Statement of signiﬁcant
accounting policies
The signiﬁcant policies which have been
adopted in the preparation of these
ﬁnancial statements are:

Unless mandatory application exists,
no new standards issued since balance
date have been applied in the preparation
of this ﬁnancial report.

Capital grants and subsidies

(b) Revenue recognition—Note 3

Contribution of assets

Revenue is recognised at the fair value
of consideration received or receivable.
Amounts disclosed are net of the returns,
trade allowances, and duties and taxes paid.

Income arising from the contribution of
an asset to the entity is recognised when,
and only when, all the following conditions
have been satisﬁed:

Royal Queensland Show

(a) the entity obtains control of the
contribution or the right to receive
the contribution.

Royal Queensland Show and ground
rental revenue is recognised in the year
it is earned.
Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when the signiﬁcant risks and
rewards of ownership pass to the buyer.
This occurs when goods are delivered
to customers.
Interest revenue

(a) Basis of preparation
The ﬁnancial statements are general
purpose ﬁnancial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards and
other authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board
and the RNA Act.
The ﬁnancial statements have been
prepared on an historical cost basis,
modiﬁed by the revaluation of selected
non-current assets, and ﬁnancial assets
and liabilities for which the fair value basis
of accounting has been applied.
The accounting policies have been
consistently applied and, except where
there is a change in accounting policy, are
consistent with those of the previous year.
Due to the speciﬁc not for proﬁt
paragraphs contained only in Australian
Accounting Standards, the Association
can not state that it has complied with
all International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).
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Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues,
using the effective interest rate method.

Capital grants and subsidies are
recognised as revenue when control is
obtained, usually upon receipt of cash.

(b) it is probable that the economic
beneﬁts comprising the contribution
will ﬂow to the entity; and
(c) the amount of the contribution can
be measured reliably.
Contribution income is measured at the
fair value of the contributions received
or receivable. If conditions attach to a
contribution, the recognition is deferred
until the conditions are satisﬁed.

Sale of non-current assets
The gain or deﬁcit on disposal is calculated
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset at the time of disposal
and the net proceeds on disposal. At the
time available-for-sale assets are sold,
the cumulative revaluation gain recorded
directly in equity is recognised in the
income statement.
Other revenue
Other revenue includes revenue from
car parking, special exhibition charges,
secretarial fee, signage revenue and
sundry revenue and is recognised on
an accrual basis.
Dividends
Dividends are recognised as revenue when
the Association’s right to receive payment
is established.

(c) Income tax
The Association is an exempt body
under Section 50–40 of the Income
Tax Assessment Act 1997 and is
accordingly not liable for income tax.
(d) Goods and services tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are
recognised net of the amount of goods
and services tax (GST), except where
the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation
Office (ATO). In these circumstances, the
GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of an
item of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated
with the amount of GST included.
The net amount of GST recoverable from,
or payable to, the ATO is included as a
current asset or liability in the statement
of ﬁnancial position.
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Cash ﬂows are included in the statement
of cash ﬂows on a gross basis. The GST
components of cash ﬂows arising from
investing and ﬁnancing activities which are
recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO
are classiﬁed as operating cash ﬂows.
(e) Cash and cash equivalents—Note 7
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at
face value of the amounts deposited or
drawn.
(f) Trade and other receivables—Note 8
Trade receivables are recognised at
original invoice amounts less an allowance
for uncollectible amounts.

Receivables are determined to be
uncollectible only when there is no
expectation of recovering any additional
cash. This may occur when a ﬁnal
distribution has been made from
administrators/liquidators, or where
unsuccessful attempts have been made
to recover the debt through legal actions
or debt collection agencies and the
prospect of recovering any additional
cash is remote.
All receivables that are neither past due
or impaired are with long standing clients
who have a good credit history with the
Association.

Certain trade debtors’ accounts specify a
speciﬁc due date and those accounts are
payable on that date. Other debtors which
have no speciﬁc due date for payment are
normally settled within 60 days.

The carrying value less impairment
provision of trade receivables and
payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values due to their short-term
nature.

The carrying amount of receivables
is reduced by the use of an allowance
account where there is objective evidence
that the Association will not be able to
recover all amounts due. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that
the customer is experiencing signiﬁcant
ﬁnancial difficulty, where debt collection
procedures have commenced, there is a
fair probability that the customer will be
put into administration or liquidation.

No past due and no impaired

When receivables for which an impairment
has previously been recognised are
determined to be uncollectible, they are
written off against the allowance account.
If no provision for impairment was
previously recognised, the impairment is
written off against the receivable directly.
Impairment losses arising from the use
of allowance accounts or bad debts are
recognised in the Income statement as
part of Other Expenses.

No receivables balances are impaired
receivables at year end.
Some past due but none impaired
The aging of balances that are past due
but not impaired including balances that
are not past due is as follows:
Not past due

1,924,193

Past due 30 days

86,007

Past due 60 days

32,298

Past due 90 days and over
Total

184,926
2,227,424

No security is held for receivables
balances that are past due but not
impaired. Receivables are due from
businesses whose credit quality has been
assessed and no material concerns have
been noted.

(g) Other ﬁnancial assets—Note 10
Available-for-sale ﬁnancial assets comprise
investments in listed and unlisted
entities and any non-derivatives that
are not classiﬁed as any other category
of ﬁnancial assets, and are classiﬁed as
non-current assets (unless management
intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period). After initial recognition,
these investments are measured at fair
value with gains or losses recognised in
other comprehensive income (availablefor-sale investments revaluation reserve).
Where there is a signiﬁcant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an availablefor-sale ﬁnancial asset (which constitutes
objective evidence of impairment) the full
amount including any amount previously
charged to other comprehensive income
is recognised in proﬁt or loss. Purchases
and sales of available-for-sale ﬁnancial
assets are recognised on settlement date
with any change in fair value between
trade date and settlement date being
recognised in other comprehensive
income. On sale, the amount held in
available-for-sale reserves associated with
that asset is recognised in proﬁt or loss as
a reclassiﬁcation adjustment. Interest on
corporate bonds classiﬁed as availablefor-sale is calculated using the effective
interest rate method and is recognised
in ﬁnance income in proﬁt or loss.
Reversals of impairment losses on equity
instruments classiﬁed as available-for-sale
cannot be reversed through proﬁt or loss.
Reversals of impairment losses on debt
instruments classiﬁed as available-for-sale
can be reversed through proﬁt or loss
where the reversal relates to an increase
in the fair value of the debt instrument
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in proﬁt or loss.
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The fair value of quoted investments are
determined by reference to Securities
Exchange quoted market bid prices at
the close of business at the end of the
reporting period. For investments where
there is no quoted market price, fair value
is determined by reference to the current
market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same or is calculated
based on the expected cash ﬂows of
the underlying net asset base of the
investment.

Assets are ﬁrst depreciated or amortised
in the year of acquisition or in respect of
internally constructed assets in the year
the asset is completed and held ready
for use.

(h) Inventories

(k) Impairment of assets

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and replacement cost. Inventories are
primarily consumable stores used by the
Association in its operations.

At each reporting date, the Association
assesses whether there is any indication
that individual assets have been impaired.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset, being the higher of
the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use, is compared to the asset’s
carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s
carrying value over its recoverable amount
is expensed to the income statement.

(i) Property, plant and equipment
—Note 11
Each class of property, plant and equipment
is carried at cost, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
Depreciation and amortisation
Items of property, plant and equipment
including buildings and ground
improvements are depreciated/amortised
using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives. Land is not
depreciated.
Depreciation and amortisation rates and
methods and useful lives are reviewed
annually for appropriateness.
The depreciation/amortisation rates used
for each class of asset are as follows:
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2011

2010

Buildings
and ground
improvements

2%–26%

2%–26%

Plant and
equipment

7%–33%

7%–33%

Substations
and electrical
equipment

5%–20%

5%–20%
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(j) Intangible assets—Note 13
Intangible assets consist of computer
software acquired to assist in managing
the operations of the Association. The
computer software, which is recorded at
cost, is amortised at a rate of 20%–33%.

Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Association estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
(l) Trade and other payables—Note 14
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to
be paid in the future for goods or services
received, whether or not billed to the
Association. Trade accounts payable,
are measured at amortised cost and are
normally settled within 30 days.
The fair value of ﬁnancial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash
ﬂows at the current market interest rate
that is available to the Association for
similar ﬁnancial instruments.

(m) Provisions—Note 15
A provision is recognised when there
is a legal, equitable or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and
it is probable that an outﬂow of economic
beneﬁts will be required to settle the
obligation, the timing or amount of which
is uncertain.
Where the effect of the time value
of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected
future cash ﬂows at a pre-tax rate that
reﬂects current market assessments
of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks speciﬁc to the
liability.
(n) Employee beneﬁts—Note 15
Wages, salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for employee beneﬁts for wages
and salaries (including non-monetary
beneﬁts), and annual leave to be settled
within 12 months of the reporting date
represent present obligations resulting
from employees’ services provided
up to the reporting date, calculated
at undiscounted amounts based on
remuneration rates that the Association
expects to pay including related oncosts. Amounts payable over a period of
greater than 12 months are discounted to
their present values of estimated future
cashﬂows. Liabilities for non accumulating
sick leave are recognised when leave is
taken and measured at the actual rates
paid/payable.
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Long service leave

(r) Comparatives

Liabilities for long service leave are
recognised as part of the provision for
employee beneﬁts and measured as the
present value of expected future payments
to be made in respect of services provided
by employees to the end of the reporting
period using the projected unit credit
method. Consideration is given to expected
future salaries and wages levels, experience
of employee departures and periods of
service. Expected future payments are
discounted using national government
bond rates at the end of the reporting
period with terms to maturity and currency
that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outﬂows.

Where required by Australian Accounting
Standards, comparative ﬁgures have
been adjusted to conform to changes
in presentation and disclosure for the
current year.

Superannuation plan

Impairment

The Association contributes to several
deﬁned contribution employee
superannuation plans. Contributions
are charged to the income statement
as incurred.

The Councillors assess impairment at each
reporting date by evaluating conditions
speciﬁc to the Association that may
lead to impairment of assets. Where an
impairment trigger exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is determined.
Value in use calculations are performed
in assessing recoverable amounts and
incorporate a number of key estimates.

(o) Leases
Leases where the lessor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the net asset are classiﬁed
as operating leases. The Association only
enters into operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of
incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to proﬁt or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
(p) Reserves
The Asset Revaluation Reserve contains
the revaluation increment on the availablefor-sale ﬁnancial assets from valuing the
investments at fair value.
(q) Trust funds
The Association from time to time receives
monies from third parties to be held in trust
and used for speciﬁc prize payments where
the particular prize is eligible to be paid.
These monies accrue interest at the average
term deposit rate with any prizes paid
deducted from the balance of the trust fund.

(s) Critical accounting estimates
and judgements
The Councillors evaluate estimates and
judgements incorporated into the ﬁnancial
report based on historical knowledge
and best available current information.
Estimates assume a reasonable
expectation of future events and are
based on current trends and economic
data, obtained externally and internally.

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment
Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are based upon expectations
of the consumption of the assets at their
acquisition date and are re-assessed
annually. The actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment may vary
for various reasons from the useful lives
adopted for depreciation purposes.
(t) Accounting standards issued not
yet effective
At the date of authorisation of the
ﬁnancial report, certain Standards and
Interpretations were on issue but not
yet effective. These Standards and
Interpretations have not been adopted
in the preparation of the ﬁnancial report
for 31 December 2011.

The Association expects to ﬁrst apply
these Standards and Interpretations in
the ﬁnancial report of the Association
relating to the annual reporting period
beginning after the effective date of
each pronouncement.
For the new standards that have been
reviewed, the Councillors anticipate
that their adoption in future periods will
have no material ﬁnancial impact on the
ﬁnancial statements of the Association.
(u) Borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially
recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in proﬁt or loss over the period
of the loans and borrowings using the
effective interest method. Fees paid for
establishing loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs if it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, and deferred until the draw down
occurs. If it is not probable that the facility
will be drawn down, fees are capitalised
as prepayments for liquidity services and
amortised over the period to which the
facility relates.
Borrowings are derecognised from
the statement of ﬁnancial position when
the obligation speciﬁed in the contract
has been discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying
amount of the borrowing derecognised
and the consideration paid is recognised
in proﬁt or loss as other income or
ﬁnance costs.
All borrowings are classiﬁed as current
liabilities unless the Association has an
unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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3 Revenue
2011 $

2010 $

Gate receipts

6,205,243

5,985,083

Show rents

3,979,768

4,245,023

Advertising and sponsorship

1,286,726

1,287,505

Competition entry fees

742,944

737,006

Membership subscription

443,523

427,326

Bar sales

597,025

569,228

Sundry show revenue

426,400

328,975

13,681,629

13,580,146

1,883,378

1,833,129

662,729

684,171

4,601,624

2,802,356

Recovered overheads

697,410

478,971

Sundry rent from ground facilities

195,701

183,850

8,040,842

5,982,477

346,505

197,130

-

-

110,167

66,324

456,672

263,454

Sundry revenue

140,575

63,741

Carpark—RBH

877,587

797,828

Dividends received

114,072

103,778

-

32,300

1,132,234

997,647

ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW

RENT FROM GROUND FACILITIES
Special exhibition rent
Special exhibition car parking
Special exhibition food and beverage

INTEREST REVENUE
Bank Bills and Term Deposits
Hybrids
Other

OTHER INCOME

Compensation

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

10,152

(15,511)

Gain/(loss) on sale of ﬁnancial assets

97,775

258,821

150,000

150,000

23,569,304

21,217,034

Capital grants and subsidies
Total revenue
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4 Employee costs

Salary and wages
Superannuation expense
Fringe beneﬁts tax

2011 $

2010 $

5,905,552

5,068,963

432,847

392,826

25,271

(41,937)

6,363,670

5,419,852

133,884

247,048

31,113

28,971

-

17,072

Bad debts (including increase/(decrease) in provision)

23,154

18,768

Consultants—redevelopment

26,328

86,861

249,633

502,532

Cost of bar stock sold

1,153,696

826,458

Cost of deli stock sold

14,842

17,383

546,925

397,436

1,162,738

1,156,628

5a Material and services
Advertising
Auditors remuneration
Audit of the ﬁnancial report
Other services (Indirect Tax Advisory)

Consultants—other

Electricity and gas
Show acts
Lease expense

(24,908)

-

Legal fees

179,976

165,736

Insurance

604,347

576,418

1,024,689

1,016,969

Maintenance
Materials

(4,823)

66,665

Postage and telephone

137,702

150,472

Printing and stationery

353,864

331,581

Prizes and ribbons

405,486

406,572

Rates and utility charges

816,378

788,599

Other show expenses*

5,289,437

4,269,643

Other materials and services**

2,784,691

1,950,247

14,934,060

12,997,151

* Other show expenses include expenses such as catering, cleaning, ticketing commissions, contract labour, hire of equipment
and security.
** Other materials and services include expenses such as catering, cleaning, promoter payback commissions, contract labour,
hire of equipment, travel, workplace health and safety.
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5b Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of buildings and improvements
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Depreciation of sub-stations and electrical
Amortisation of computer software

2011 $

2010 $

1,188,684

1,337,084

737,564

729,490

40,374

129,609

174,283

153,134

2,140,905

2,349,317

6 Signiﬁcant Items
The following signiﬁcant items of revenue and expense are relevant in understanding the result from operations for the Association:
INCOME
Gain on disposal of ﬁnancial assets

97,775

258,821

97,775

258,821

109,834

-

109,834

-

524,049

231,108

2,184,176

2,166,670

EXPENSE
Unrealised loss on investments

7 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand

8 Trade and other receivables
CURRENT
Trade debtors
Provision for impairment

(24,756)

(18,710)

68,004

143,156

2,227,424

2,291,116

Prepayments

338,326

296,055

Other

306,316

211,799

644,642

507,854

Other debtors

9 Other current assets
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10 Other ﬁnancial assets
2011 $

2010 $

8,946,321

3,474,184

204,744

509,439

9,151,065

3,983,623

2,260,875

3,690,655

-

383,022

2,260,875

4,073,677

CURRENT
Bank Bills and Term Deposits
Cash Management Trust

NON-CURRENT—AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
Investments in Listed Equities—at fair value
Investments in Hybrid Securities—at fair value

Short-term deposits
Short-term bank bills and term deposits at 31 December 2011 mature between 30 and 120 days and pay interest between 5.04% and
6.00% (2010: mature within 30 days and pay interest between 4.87% and 5.11%).
Investments in listed equities and hybrid securities
Investments are classiﬁed as available-for-sale and are carried at fair value.
The fair value of the investments in listed equities and hybrid securities is determined by reference to the quoted market price at balance
date, which is categorised as level one in the fair value hierarchy.
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11 Property, plant and equipment
2011 $

2010 $

96,880

96,880

25,750,477

23,546,351

(18,347,540)

(17,158,855)

7,402,937

6,387,496

At cost

14,781,373

14,377,294

Accumulated depreciation

(8,927,796)

(8,224,120)

5,853,577

6,153,174

2,644,730

2,644,730

(2,270,652)

(2,230,278)

FREEHOLD LAND—AT COST
BUILDINGS AND GROUND IMPROVEMENTS
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

SUB-STATIONS AND ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
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374,078

414,452

WORK IN PROGRESS—CONSTRUCTION

14,932,502

1,740,560

Total property, plant and equipment net book value

28,659,974

14,792,562
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11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
2011 $

2010 $

Carrying amount at beginning of year

96,880

96,880

Carrying amount at end of year

96,880

96,880

1,740,560

-

Additions

13,191,942

1,740,560

Carrying amount at end of year

14,932,502

1,740,560

Carrying amount at beginning of year

6,387,496

7,740,091

Additions

2,204,125

-

Disposals

-

RECONCILIATIONS
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment are set out below:
FREEHOLD LAND

WORK IN PROGRESS—CONSTRUCTION
Carrying amount at beginning of year

BUILDINGS

Depreciation Expense

(15,511)

(1,188,684)

(1,337,084)

7,402,937

6,387,496

6,153,174

6,298,101

Additions

437,814

584,561

Disposals

(33,738)

-

33,676

-

Carrying amount at end of year
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Carrying amount at beginning of year

Depreciation on Disposal
Depreciation Expense
Carrying amount at end of year

(737,349)

(729,488)

5,853,577

6,153,174

414,452

529,151

-

14,910

SUB-STATIONS AND ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT
Carrying amount at beginning of year
Additions
Depreciation Expense

(40,374)

(129,609)

Carrying amount at end of year

374,078

414,452

28,659,974

14,792,562

Total carrying value of property, plant and equipment
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11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Current valuation of land and buildings
The Association is incorporated under the Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland Act 1971 (“the Act”)
and operates under the provisions of that Act. In accordance with the Act, the Association cannot sell its land without the approval of
the Governor in Council. In the event of an RNA insolvency, the balance site (approx 14ha which has not been made available for private
development) would be divested automatically to the State Government.
Given the special purpose nature of the land and the restrictions imposed by the Act on the Association’s ability to deal with the land,
the Councillors most recent valuation of freehold land was carried out as at 31 December 2011 on the basis of rateable value. This value
was $78,910,000.
With respect to the current value of the Association’s buildings, the Councillors commissioned an independent valuation in March 2006
prepared on the basis of reinstatement cost for insurance purposes. The independent valuation of reinstatement cost of the Association’s
buildings resulted in a valuation of $96,744,000.
As freehold land and buildings are recorded at cost, the above valuations have not been brought to account.

12 Land held for resale

Costs of land designated for development and sale

2011 $

2010 $

5,834,000

4,701,215

1,132,854

935,962

13 Intangible assets
Computer software at cost
Accumulated amortisation

(789,784)

(615,501)

343,070

320,461

Carrying amount at beginning of year

320,461

216,858

Additions

196,892

256,737

Disposals

-

-

Net carrying value
RECONCILIATIONS
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of intangible asset are set out below:
Computer software

Depreciation expense
Carrying amount at end of year
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(174,283)

(153,134)

343,070

320,461
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14 Trade and other payables
2011 $

2010 $

2,056,353

223,677

Other creditors and accruals

856,368

449,093

Annual leave

304,141

307,079

3,216,862

979,849

105,195

131,251

105,195

131,251

153,074

114,401

153,074

114,401

258,269

245,652

Venue Hire Rent and Bond

1,999,996

1,925,597

Redevelopment

3,000,000

-

199,543

148,083

5,199,539

2,073,680

Unsecured trade creditors

15 Provisions
CURRENT
Provision for long service leave

NON-CURRENT
Provision for long service leave

Total provisions

16 Unearned Income

Other
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17 Borrowings
2011 $

2010 $

13,400,121

-

13,400,121

-

NON-CURRENT—SECURED
Queensland Treasury Corporation loan

The RNA has entered into a loan agreement with Queensland Treasury Corporation for $65 million to assist in the ﬁnancing of new
facilities to be delivered as part of the RNA redevelopment. The loan will be secured by a ﬁrst registered mortgage over the balance
site (ie, that part of the RNA site that is not within the private development lots to be sold in accordance with the Project Development
Agreement) and a ﬁrst ranking charge over all of the assets of the RNA. As at 31 December 2011, $13,400,121 has been drawn down.
Repayments of the principal are scheduled over an 11 year period with the ﬁrst repayments to be made in 2016. Interest is variable
until 10 January 2014 when it converts to a ﬁxed rate. Interest is paid each month.

18 Advanced Land Payments
Lend Lease

216,551

-

216,551

-

Amounts owing to Lend Lease pursuant to the Master Plan Project Development Agreement (PDA) are secured by:
a) A Mortgage over the land designated for redevelopment under the PDA
b) A conditional contract for RNA to roll undeveloped portions of the redevelopment land. Settlement of this contract only occurs
if the PDA is terminated because of RNA default and Lend Lease elects to complete that contract instead of enforcing its mortgage
security.
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19 Notes to the statement of cash ﬂows
(i) Reconciliation of cash
For the purposes of the statement of cash ﬂows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and at bank, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts. Cash as at the end of the ﬁnancial year as shown in the statement of cash ﬂows is reconciled to the related items in the
statement of ﬁnancial position as follows:
2011 $

2010 $

Cash on hand

15,890

14,490

Cash at bank

508,159

216,618

Total cash

524,049

231,108

20,835

450,714

(Gain)/loss on sale of non-current assets

(10,152)

15,511

(Gain)/loss on sale of investments

(97,775)

(258,821)

(ii) Reconciliation of cash ﬂow from operations with operating surplus/(deﬁcit)
Surplus/(Deﬁcit) after income tax
ADD/(LESS) ITEMS CLASSIFIED AS INVESTING/FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

ADD/(LESS) NON-CASH ITEMS:
Depreciation and amortisation

2,140,905

2,349,317

Amounts set aside to provisions

9,679

83,807

Unrealised Loss on Investments

109,834

-

25,745

17,674

(136,788)

58,479

63,693

(602,666)

Increase in trade and other payables

796,336

80,324

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities

126,122

569,260

3,486

354

3,051,920

2,763,953

CHANGE IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DURING THE YEAR:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase) in other assets
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase in trust funds
Cash ﬂow from operations
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20 Financial Instruments
(a) Interest rate risk exposures
The Association’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate for classes of ﬁnancial assets and
ﬁnancial liabilities is set out below:
Fixed interest maturing in

Note
2011

Weighted
average
Floating
interest rate interest rate

1 year
or less

1 to 5
years

>5
years

Noninterest
bearing

Total

%

$

$

$

$

$

$

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

7

3.53

508,159

-

-

-

15,890

524,049

Trade and other receivables

8

-

-

-

-

-

2,227,424

2,227,424

Bank bills & Term Deposits

9

5.05

-

8,946,321

-

-

-

8,946,321

Cash management trust

9

3.25

204,744

-

-

-

-

204,744

Investments in listed equities

9

-

-

-

-

-

2,260,875

2,260,875

Investments in hybrid
securities

9

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

712,903

8,946,321

4,504,189

14,163,413

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

12

-

-

-

-

-

2,912,721

2,912,721

Borrowings

15

4.1

13,400,121

-

-

-

-

13,400,121

-

-

-

-

-

5,199,539

5,199,539

8,112,260

21,512,381

Other liabilities

13,400,121
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Fixed interest maturing in

Note
2010

Weighted
average
interest rate

Floating
interest
rate

1 year
or less

1 to 5
years

>5
years

Noninterest
bearing

Total

%

$

$

$

$

$

$

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

7

3.52

216,618

-

-

-

14,490

231,108

Trade and other receivables

8

-

-

-

-

-

2,291,116

2,291,116

Bank bills & Term Deposits

9

5.00

-

3,474,184

-

-

-

3,474,184

Cash management trust

9

3.04

509,439

-

-

-

-

509,439

Investments in listed equities

9

-

-

-

-

-

3,690,655

3,690,655

Investments in hybrid
securities

9

-

-

383,022

-

-

-

383,022

726,057

3,857,206

5,996,261

10,579,524

-

-

-

-

-

672,770

672,770

-

-

-

-

-

2,073,680

2,073,680

2,746,450

2,746,450

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities

12

(b) Credit risk exposures
Credit risk is the risk of ﬁnancial loss to the Association if a customer or counterparty to a ﬁnancial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations to the Association.
Credit risk arises principally from trade and other receivables and investments.
The objective of the Association is to minimise risk of loss from credit risk exposure.
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Receivables

Maximum credit risk

The Association has established a number
of policies and processes to manage credit
risk from receivables. These include:

The Association’s maximum exposure
to credit risk, without taking into account
the value of any collateral or other
security, in the event other parties fail to
perform their obligations under ﬁnancial
instruments in relation to each class of
recognised ﬁnancial asset at reporting
date is the carrying amount of those
assets as indicated in the Statement
of Financial Position.

đƳ Credit assessment and approval policies
đƳ Credit limits
đƳ Review of ageing
đƳ Follow-up procedures
đƳ Debt recovery procedures
Credit risk from receivables is measured
using debtors days and aging. Refer Note
2(f) for ageing analysis.
Investments
The Association has established a number
of policies and processes to manage credit
risk from investments. These include:
đƳ Monitoring performance of companies
invested in
đƳ Monitoring rate of return eg dividends/
interest
Credit risk from investments is measured
using rate of return on investment.

Investment
value
Income
earned
Rate of
return

2011 $

2010 $

11,411,940

8,057,300

588,152

582,725

5.15%

7.23%

Income earned excludes fair value
movements.
Concentrations
The Association has no concentration
of credit risk from receivables or
investments.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Association
will not be able to meet its ﬁnancial
obligations as they fall due.
The objective of managing liquidity risk
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they fall due, under both
normal and stressed conditions.
The Association has established a number
of policies and processes for managing
liquidity risk. These include:
đƳ Continuously monitoring actual and
daily cashﬂows and longer-term
forecasted cashﬂows
đƳ Monitoring the maturity proﬁles of
ﬁnancial assets and liabilities in order
to match inﬂows and outﬂows
đƳ Financial assets held for which there
is liquid market and that are readily
saleable
đƳ Financial assets held for which there
is not a liquid market, but which are
expected to generate cash inﬂows that
are available to meet cash outﬂows
đƳ Maintaining adequate reserves and
support facilities
đƳ Monitoring liquidity ratios (working
capital)
Liquidity risk is measured using liquidity
ratios such as working capital.
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Summary quantitative data
2011 $

2010 $

Current
assets

12,594,359

7,086,626

Current
liabilities

8,521,596

3,184,780

Surplus
/(deﬁcit)

4,072,763

3,901,846

Maturity analysis
Financial liabilities have differing maturity
proﬁles depending on the contractual term
and in the case of borrowings, different
repayment amounts and frequency.
The table shows the period in which the
principal and interest (if applicable) of
recognised and unrecognised ﬁnancial
liability balances will be paid based on
the remaining period to repayment date
assuming contractual repayments are
maintained. Contractual cashﬂows are
at undiscounted values (including future
interest expected to be paid). Accordingly
these values may not agree to carrying
amount.
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Carrying
amount

Contract
cashﬂow

Within
1 year

3,216,862

3,216,862

3,216,862

13,400,121

21,235,000
87,520

Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Commitments

1 to 5 years

> 5 years

440,000

6,598,000

14,197,000

47,738

39,782

No maturity

Trade and other payables are contractually due within 6 months of year end.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the
Association’s income or the value of its holdings of ﬁnancial instruments.
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimising
the return.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises principally from cash at bank and available-for-sale ﬁnancial assets.
The Association has established a number of policies and processes for managing interest risk rate. It is the policy of the Association to
manage interest rate risk exposures by continuously monitoring interest rates and to alter the balance of ﬁxed and variable rate deposits
as considered appropriate.
Interest rate risk is measured as the value of assets and liabilities at ﬁxed rate compared to those at variable rate.
Sensitivity analysis
A change of 100 basis points (1%) in interest rates at reporting date would have increased/decreased equity and proﬁt or loss by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
the prior year.
Proﬁt or loss

Equity

+1%

-1%

+1%

-1%

31 Dec 2011

96,592

(96,592)

96,592

(96,592)

31 Dec 2010

45,832

(45,832)

45,832

(45,832)

Equity price risk
Equity price risk arises principally from available for sale ﬁnancial assets.
The Association has established a number of policies and processes for managing equity price risk. These include:
đƳ Monitoring equity prices continuously;
đƳ Assessing the earnings and risk of an industry or company prior to investing;
đƳ Maintaining a diversiﬁed portfolio;
đƳ Utilising third party experts to maintain and manage the day to day investments.
đƳ Due to the large value of ﬁxed interest investments, the Association has adopted a policy that maintains an equity portfolio of
30% defensive assets and 70% growth assets.
Equity price risk is measured as the percentage ﬂuctuation in the share price of an equity instrument compared to the percentage
ﬂuctuation in the total market index for the same period.

rna annual report 2011

79

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Summary quantitative data
The Association’s exposure to equity price risk at reporting date is as follows:
2011 $

2010 $

Energy

315,850

617,216

Materials

701,442

1,214,660

Industrials

198,958

220,003

Consumer Discretionary

124,000

234,500

Health Care

441,450

400,160

Consumer Staples

-

80,000

International Managed Funds

-

175,144

479,175

748,125

2,260,875

3,689,808

Industry/company

Financials-Ex Prop Trusts
Total

Sensitivity analysis
A 10% change in equity prices at reporting date would have increased/decreased equity and proﬁt or loss by the amounts shown below.
This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the prior year.
Proﬁt or loss
+10%

-10%

+10%

31 Dec 2011

-

-

226,088

(226,088)

31 Dec 2010

-

-

368,981

(368,981)

(c) Net fair values of ﬁnancial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of ﬁnancial assets and liabilities approximate fair value.
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21 Commitments
2011 $

2010 $

Within one year

47,738

47,738

One year or later and no later than ﬁve years

39,782

91,498

87,520

139,236

OPERATING LEASE PAYABLE COMMITMENTS
Future non-cancellable operating lease rentals of plant and equipment,
not provided for in the ﬁnancial statements and payable:

The Association has a ten year lease with QR (commencing 25 Aug 2010) for rental of a ﬁre escape and other areas located on QR land,
as well as a 5 year lease with QR (commencing 01 November 2010) for rental of subway access for vehicles and pedestrians located on
QR land. The Association also has a ﬁve year lease with Fuji Xerox (commencing 28 October 2008) for rental of two photocopier
machines.
OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLE COMMITMENTS
Future non-cancellable operating lease rentals of plant and equipment,
not provided for in the ﬁnancial statements and receivable:
Within one year
One year or later and no later than ﬁve years
Later than ﬁve years

62,723

96,398

101,764

168,356

45,821

68,007

210,308

332,761

The Association has re-negotiated a 10 year lease with Telstra Corporation for ground rental on RNA land commencing 01 March 2010.
The Association has re-negotiated a ﬁve year lease with Vodafone Network for ground rental on RNA land commencing 01 September
2009. The Association has a 1 year lease with Sarina Russo Schools (commencing 06 May 2011) for ground rental.
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS
Capital Expenditure commitments contracted for:
Industrial Pavilion Convention Centre

51,599,879

-

EBMS Venue Management Software

120,000

-

Hoecker

306,933

-
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22 Key management personnel remuneration
Councillors
At the Association’s Council meeting on 27 October 2000 it was resolved that ‘Country Councillors’ who travel a distance of more
than 100km radius from Brisbane be reimbursed their travel expenses based on Australian Taxation Office rates, as published, and be
able to claim overnight accommodation where applicable for attending official meetings of the Council and the Executive Committee.
At 31 December 2011 there were six Councillors eligible to claim travel expenses (2010: six Councillors).
Councillors do not receive remuneration for their membership of Council.
Key Management
Total income paid or payable, or otherwise made available to the key management of the Association from the Association or any
related party.

Salary and fees
Superannuation contribution
Long-term beneﬁts—long service leave
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2011 $

2010 $

1,637,263

1,428,356

184,849

152,554

81,981

62,640

1,904,093

1,643,550

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23 Related party disclosure
The name of each person holding the position of Councillor of the Association during the year is listed in the Councillors’ Report.
Mr D G Thomas is a partner in the law ﬁrm of Minter Ellison. During the period Mr Thomas held the position of Councillor of the
Association, the Association paid legal fees to Minter Ellison amounting to $260,977 (2010: $875,671).
Other transactions between the Association and Councillors and their related entities are immaterial in nature and occur within normal
customer/supplier relationships on terms and conditions no more favourable than those which it is reasonable to expect would have
been adopted if dealings with non-Councillor related entities at arm’s length in the same circumstances.

24 Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
The Association has no known material contingent assets or contingent liabilities.

25 Subsequent Events
No events have occurred subsequent to balance date that would require disclosure in or amendment of these ﬁnancial statements.
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COUNCILLORS’ DECLARATION

The Councillors of The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland declare that:
a. the ﬁnancial statements comprising the statement of comprehensive income, statement of ﬁnancial position, statement of changes
in equity, statement of cash ﬂows and accompanying notes set out on pages 58 to 83, are in accordance with the Royal National
Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland Act 1971 as amended; and
(i)

comply with Australian Accounting Standards; and

(ii)

give a true and fair view of the ﬁnancial position of the Association as at 31 December 2011 and of its performance for the
year ended on that date; and

b. In the opinion of the Councillors, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Association will be able to pay its obligations and
liabilities as and when they become due and payable.
Dated at Brisbane this 17th day of February 2012.
This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Councillors and is signed for and on behalf of Councillors by:

D G Thomas
President
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C J Sinclair
Honorary Treasurer

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE ROYAL NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL AND INDUSTRIAL
ASSOCIATION OF QUEENSLAND
We have audited the accompanying
ﬁnancial report of The Royal National
Agricultural and Industrial Association
of Queensland, which comprises the
statement of ﬁnancial position as at
31 December 2011, and the statement
of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of
cash ﬂows for the year ended on that
date, a summary of signiﬁcant accounting
policies, other explanatory notes and
the Councillors’ declaration.

Councillors’ Responsibility for
the Financial Report
The Councillors of The Royal National
Agricultural and Industrial Association
of Queensland are responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation
of the ﬁnancial report in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards
(including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Royal National
Agricultural and Industrial Association
of Queensland Act 1971 (as amended).
This responsibility includes establishing
and maintaining internal controls relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation
of the ﬁnancial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Independence

Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the ﬁnancial report based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance
with Australian Auditing Standards. These
Auditing Standards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements relating
to audit engagements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the ﬁnancial
report is free from material misstatement.

In conducting our audit, we followed
applicable independence requirements
of Australian professional ethical
pronouncements. We conﬁrm the
independence declaration provided
to the Councillors of The Royal National
Agricultural and Industrial Association of
Queensland on 17 February 2012 would
be in the same terms if provided to the
Councillors as at the time this auditor’s
report was made.

An audit involves performing procedures
to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the ﬁnancial
report. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the ﬁnancial report,
whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the ﬁnancial report in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the
Councillors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the ﬁnancial report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Audit opinion
In our opinion, the ﬁnancial statements
of The Royal National Agricultural and
Industrial Association of Queensland are
in accordance with the Royal National
Agricultural and Industrial Association
of Queensland Act 1971 (as amended),
including:
a) giving a true and fair view of the
Association’s ﬁnancial position as
at 31 December 2011 and of its
performance for the year ended
on that date; and
b) complying with Australian Accounting
Standards.
BDO Audit (QLD) Pty Ltd

C J Skelton
Director
Brisbane
Date: 17 February 2012
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12:54PM. 17 August 2011 Ekka.
The Show for creatures great and small.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT

“

The RNA has embarked on a comprehensive
business model restructure to achieve

70 per cent of core revenue through events
outside of the annual Royal Queensland Show.”

As we move into the 21st century, the
RNA has embarked on a comprehensive
business model restructure to achieve
70 per cent of core revenue through
events outside of the annual Royal
Queensland Show.
This strategic restructure has already
resulted in the RNA achieving strong
growth this year and further secures
the long-term ﬁnancial viability of the
organisation. In 2011 the RNA recorded
a 34 per cent increase in venue hire
business revenue and since 2009 this has
increased by 91 per cent from $3.6 million
to $8 million. As Brisbane’s largest indoor/
outdoor events venue, this year almost
150 events were held ranging from the
Ekka, to weddings, trade shows and
exhibitions, sporting events and major
music festivals, attracting almost one
million visitors. There was only one
weekend this year, with the exception
of Easter and Christmas, that an event
was not held at the RNA Showgrounds.
In March 2013, our $59 million Royal
International Convention Centre will open,
as part of stage one of the $2.9 billion
15 year RNA Showgrounds Regeneration
Project. It is the cornerstone of our new
business model and involves the Industrial
Pavilion being transformed into a multilevel venue capable of holding more than
a dozen events at any one time. In its ﬁrst
year of operation, the 22,000m2 centre is
expected to stage 120 events and within
three years, 220 events annually.

This year, the RNA’s turnover increased by
11 per cent to $23.5 million, a signiﬁcant
achievement considering it exceeded
2010’s highest ever turnover of $21 million.
Our Ekka revenue increased by almost
four per cent on last year’s record
breaking gate takings from $5.9 million
to $6.2 million, the highest ever. It was also
the second year in a row the Ekka attracted
more than 400,000 through the gates.
This was an excellent achievement for the
RNA considering construction works due to
the regeneration project meant a reduction
in space and some locational changes for
attractions and competitions.
In 2012, the RNA will celebrate the 135th
anniversary of the Show, which was ﬁrst
held in 1876. Nationally, the Royal Shows
attract four million visitors a year and
while they maintain a loyal following,
the need to reinvent ourselves to keep
in line with the needs of ever changing
demographics is vital.
Rapid advancements in technology and
the rise of social media has revolutionised
how our stakeholders, clients, consumers
and visitors access information and
communicate.
A new tech savvy Gen Y demographic
does not communicate or access
information traditionally through radio,
print or television. This demographic is
critical and this year the RNA launched the
Ekka’s ﬁrst iPhone app. It enabled visitors
to maximize their experience by creating
their own itinerary, showbag wish list and

plan of must try rides. For more than a
week the brand new app placed in the top
ﬁve free entertainment apps in Australia
with 32,000 downloads. Fans on our Ekka
Facebook page also increased 233 per
cent this year, from almost 6,000 in 2010
to just fewer than 20,000 in 2011. This
major increase further shows how rapidly
social media is being embraced each year.
The RNA is committed to actively
embracing new technologies to improve
communications with our visitors, keep
the community informed and offer a
streamlined process for online entries.
It also allows us to gain a better insight
into what the public wants from events
and provides an invaluable way of having
a conversation that both the RNA and its
customers can beneﬁt from. Utilising these
technologies is a vital investment to our
bottom line and brand reputation.
In 2011 the RNA achieved strong
growth across all our business brands—
a trend set to continue, with a projected
15 per cent increase in new business for
the convention centre alone in 2014.
I look forward to another year of solid
performance as the RNA embarks on
an exciting era of legacy building.

Jonathan Tunny
Chief Executive
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